
 

 

County Buildings, Stafford 
DDI 01785 276061 

Please ask for Deb Breedon 
Email: deborah.breedon@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Monday 20 March 2023 
10:00 

Council Chamber, County Buildings, Stafford 
 

The meeting will be webcast live which can be viewed at any time here:  
https://staffordshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home  

 
John Tradewell 

Director of Corporate Services 
10 March 2023 

 

 
A G E N D A 

1.  Apologies  

   
2.  Declarations of Interest  

   
3.  Minutes of the last meeting held on 13 February 2023 (Pages 1 - 6) 

   
4.  Social Care Workforce Update (Pages 7 - 70) 

   
 Report of the Cabinet Member for Health and Care.  
   

5.  Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent ICB update on 
2023/24 Operational Plan 

(Pages 71 - 
102) 

   
 Report of the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent ICB.  

   
6.  District and Borough Health Scrutiny Activity (Pages 103 - 

110) 
   
7.  Work Programme 2022/23 (Pages 111 - 

114) 
   

8.  Exclusion of the Public  
   

 The Chairman to move:- 
 

That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business which involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in the paragraphs Part 1 of 

Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 
indicated below.  

 

https://staffordshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

   
 

Membership 

 

Patricia Ackroyd 
Charlotte Atkins 

Philip Atkins, OBE 
Richard Cox (Vice-Chair 
(Overview)) 

Ann Edgeller (Vice-Chair 
(Scrutiny)) 

Keith Flunder 
Philippa Haden 

Phil Hewitt 
Lin Hingley 

Jill Hood 
 

Barbara Hughes 
Thomas Jay 

Dan Maycock 
Jeremy Pert (Chair) 
Bernard Peters 

Janice Silvester-Hall 
Mike Sutherland 

Mike Wilcox 
Ian Wilkes 

 

 
Notes for Members of the Press and Public 

 
Filming of Meetings 

 
Staffordshire County Council is defined as a Data Controller under the Data 

Protection Act 2018. The County Council has agreed that Public meetings 
should be the subject of live web transmission ‘webcasting’. Fixed cameras 
are located within meeting room for this purpose.  

 
The webcast will be live on the County Council’s website and recorded for 

subsequent play-back for 12 months. The recording will also be uploaded to 
YouTube. By entering the meeting room and using the seats around the 

meeting tables you are deemed to be consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for the purpose of 

webcasting.  
 
If you have privacy concerns about the webcast or do not wish to have your 

image captured then please contact the Member and Democratic Services 
officer named at the top right of the agenda. 

 
Recording by Press and Public 

 
Recording (including by the use of social media) by the Press and Public is 

permitted from the public seating area provided it does not, in the opinion of 
the chairman, disrupt the meeting.  
 



 

- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting held on 13 February 2023 

 
Present: Jeremy Pert (Chair) 

 

Attendance 
 

Charlotte Atkins 
Philip Atkins, OBE 

Richard Cox (Vice-Chair 
(Overview)) 

Ann Edgeller (Vice-Chair 
(Scrutiny)) 

Keith Flunder 
 

Phil Hewitt 
Jill Hood 

Barbara Hughes 
Dan Maycock 

 

 
Also in attendance:  Councillor Julia Jessel, Councillor Mark Sutton & 

Councillor Paul Northcott 
 

Apologies: Philippa Haden, Thomas Jay, Bernard Peters, Janice Silvester-
Hall, Mike Sutherland and Mike Wilcox 

 
Part one 

 
45. Declarations of Interest 
 

Councillor Ann Edgeller declared an interest as Staffordshire County 
Councils appointed partner Governor at the Midlands Partnership 

Foundation Trust (MPFT). 
 

46. Minutes of the last meeting held on 30 January 2023 
 

Resolved – That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2023 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman. 
 

47. Mental Health and Mental Wellbeing Strategy 2023-2028 
 

Councillor Julia Jessel and Jan Cartman-Frost, Senior Commissioning 
Manager presented the Mental Health and Mental Wellbeing Strategy 

2023-2028. The Committee were informed the strategy had been jointly 
developed by the Council and the Integrated Care Board (ICB) and had 

been intended to be a simplified high-level strategy.  
 
The Committee was informed that there had been a number of wide range 

focus groups and consultations involved in developing the strategy, 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

- 2 - 
 

national research and legislative changes had also been incorporated into 
the strategy.  

 
The Committee noted the following comments and responses to 

questions:  
 

 The Health and Wellbeing Board were due to oversee delivery of the 

strategy and associated action plan. 

 A co-produced action plan is to be developed by end June 2023.  

 The ambition “Building strong and resilient communities and 

individuals who are in control of their own mental wellbeing” should 

also refer to physical health as the two were linked. 

 Wider issues which contribute to poor mental health were referred 

to in the strategy.  

 Signposting for support was not always clear and there should be 

signposts included in GPs and Libraries.  

 Use of voluntary sector would be included in the Action plan for 

services such as green space community projects to support the 

community to help themselves.  

 Some individuals were not able to help to help themselves and their 

mental wellbeing. GPs had started to employ Mental Health 

Practitioners within surgeries and Staffordshire had a wide range of 

support on offer. There was a role for Councillors as community 

champions. There were a number of different ways of accessing 

Mental Health services in Staffordshire which could create confusion 

and the action plan being produced should use the opportunity to 

create a linear process.   

 The strategy was intended to involve workplaces to offer a 

workplace mental health offer to employees. Lone workers needed 

to be considered. 

 There was a Staffordshire Suicide Prevention Strategy. 

 The Committee requested to know which Primary Care Networks 

had taken the offer to have Mental Health Practitioners.  

 There needed to be a balance between Childrens Mental Health and 

prevention and Adults Mental Health, as Childrens Mental Health 

issues were likely to continue into Adulthood.  

  

Resolved – That (a) the report be received. 

 
(b) the Committee Considered and made comment on the proposed joint 
Mental Health & Mental Wellbeing Strategy: ‘Good Mental Health in 

Staffordshire’ 2023-28.  
 

(c) the Committee be informed which Primary Care Networks had taken 
the offer to have Mental Health Practitioners. 

Page 2



 

- 3 - 
 

48. Update on Mental Health Support Teams in Schools 
 

Councillor Paul Northcott, Becky Murphy Commissioning Officer, Health 
and Wellbeing, Nicola Bromage, Associate Director – Mental Health, 

Learning Disability and Autism, Lyse Edwards, Sarbjit O’Brien & Deborah 
Hargreaves provided an update on Mental Health Support teams in 

Schools.  
 

The Committee were advised that the Mental Health Support Team 
(MHST) approach was set out in a green paper – Transforming Children 
and Young People’s Mental Health (CYPMH) provision, the NHS Long term 

plan published in January 2019 built on the green paper announcing than 
an extra 340,000 children and young people will receive mental health 

support by 2023/24. It was reported that the green paper set out three 
major proposals to transform children and young people’s mental health 

provision with a focus on improving mental health in education: 
 

a) incentivise all schools and colleges to identify and train senior 
mental health leads in education settings  
 

b) new MHSTs across education settings to provide early intervention 

and support the promotion of good mental health and wellbeing 
 

c) Pilot 4-week waiting times to access specialist NHS CYPMH services. 

The Committee were informed of the current position, outcomes and 
challenges. 

 
The Committee noted the following comments and responses to 

questions:  
 

 There was a review of special school provision currently taking 

place. Additional capacity and education placements in special 

settings may be required. 

 Mental Health Support Teams were currently only available in a 

limited number of schools. There was a multiyear selection planning 

process to secure further Mental Health Support Teams. The Mental 

Health Support Teams in schools were to provide early intervention 

and support the promotion of good mental health and wellbeing.  

 Best practice was shared with other schools which may be within 

the same academy trust, but outside the catchment for the Mental 

Health Support Teams. 

 The Council encouraged schools to engage with the support 

available to them via the Mental Health Support Teams and worked 

with the MHSTs where schools have disengaged. 

Page 3



 

- 4 - 
 

 Councillor Edgeller as Mental Health Champion was willing to attend 

the education network meetings and Headteachers forum to 

encourage schools to engage with the whole school approach. 

 Pupil Referral Units (PRU) were engaged with the approach. The 

PRU in Burton was engaged with the support and other PRUs in the 

County were due to engage as the offer was scaled up. 

Resolved – That (a) the Committee noted the plan for expansion of 

Mental Health Support Teams by March 2024. 
 
(b) the progress, outcomes achieved, and the challenges and barriers 

experienced be noted. 
 

49. Childrens Mental Health Update 
 

Councillor Mark Sutton, Becky Murphy Commissioning Officer, Health and 
Wellbeing, Nicola Bromage, Associate Director – Mental Health, Learning 

Disability and Autism, Lyse Edwards, Sarbjit O’Brien & Deborah 
Hargreaves presented the Childrens Mental Health Update. 
 

The Committee were updated on the Mental Health Portfolio Structure and 
the Key Performance indicators. It was reported that there was now a 

Mental Health System Performance Dashboard and a snapshot of the 
latest CAMHS (Child & Adolescent Mental Health Services) data was 

shared with the Committee.  
 

The Committee were informed the NHS long term plan commitments for 
Children & Young People and the refreshed Mental Health Local 
Transformation Plan 2022. 

 
The Committee were advised that there had been an increase in the 

complexity and number of referrals. It was reported that the CYP access 
rates achieved 35% across the ICS. There had been a jointly 

commissioned emotional wellbeing service with both Staffordshire and 
Stoke-on-Trent.  

 
It was reported that CYP Mental Health Services were moving to a Thrive 
Model and away from a tiered approach. The Thrive model was an 

integrated, person-centred and needs led approach to delivering mental 
health services for children and young people. It conceptualises five 

categories or needs-based groups: Thriving, Getting Advice, Getting Help, 
Getting More Help and Getting Risk Support.  A diagram showing the 

Thrive model was shared with the Committee. The digital offer from North 
Staffordshire and South Staffordshire was also shared with the 

Committee. 
 

Page 4



 

- 5 - 
 

Becky Murphy Commissioning Officer, Health and Wellbeing highlighted 
that there were a number of things that the County Council were working 

on to support children and young people’s mental health such as support 
for mental health leads in schools and other educational settings via the 

Mental Health Leads in Education Network, the development of a PSHE 
Mental Health Professionals Pack and regular information, good practice 

and resources being promoted through the half-termly Kind Minds 
Newsletter. The local authority was also represented on the ICB CYP 

Mental Health System Improvement Board and the supporting Working 
Groups.  
 

The Committee noted the following comments and responses to 
questions:  

 

 The performance indicator of Children and Young People with Eating 

Disorders seen within 1 week of a referral was lower for the MPFT 

than NSCHT. The data was presented as a percentage and could 

have represented a single child. 

 A delay may have been an example of a case which had required 

more than one professional and it was deemed beneficial to wait 

until all professionals were available.  

 Some of the data in the presentation required more narrative to 

guide Members on focus areas, some of the performance was 

difficult to interpret. 

 The Dashboard would be shared with the Committee on a quarterly 

basis.  

 The collection and analysis of outcomes data was being considered 

by one of the Working Groups which reported to the ICB CYP MH 

System Improvement Board. The Working Groups aim was to 

improve how outcomes are collected and measured across the 

partnership system and how the information was used to inform 

activity. Feedback on the data from today’s Scrutiny Committee 

would be used to inform this work.  

 Part of the Staffordshire Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

included good mental health as a priority and there would be a joint 

lead from Staffordshire and the Integrated Care Board. 

 Early Help and Prevention were a key element of the work taking 

place around mental health. Prevention was a theme for one of the 

Working Groups. In Staffordshire, mental health was a key criteria 

and outcome measure of the Building Resilient Families & 

Communities (BRFC) Programme. BRFC colleagues, including those 

involved in developing the Family Hub model, would be engaged in 

the Prevention Working Group to ensure that activity was joined up 

and that mental health was a fundamental part of our early help 

approach.   

Page 5



 

- 6 - 
 

 Work with schools was ongoing to support them to deliver a Whole 

School Approach to mental health. A Wellbeing Survey had been 

conducted across all Staffordshire schools in Autumn 2022. The 

survey asked a range of questions which covered staff and student 

wellbeing and implementation of the Whole School Approach to 

Mental Health. While almost 50% of schools had either started to 

implement or had fully implemented the Whole School Approach, 

the survey indicated that there was more work to be done with 

some schools to support them in implementing the approach. An 

action plan is being developed to address the gaps identified in the 

survey.   

 Diabetes may lead to Mental Health issues and should be 

considered. It was confirmed that the relationship between mental 

health and physical health was vital and would be considered.   

 It was unclear which mental health support services were available 

in each area. The Committee requested that a list of core services 

and non-core additional services which were being developed in 

each area be shared with the Committee.  

 Key Challenge relating to increased number of referrals and 

complexity of referrals. It was reported that the increase was a 

result of COVID and investments around Childrens Mental Health 

had been made to respond to the increased demand. 

 The Committee requested information and data to evidence the 

increase in demand and complexity of Childrens Mental Health 

which included information around referral rates and ages with a 
comparison with national evidence.  

Resolved – That (a) the presentation be received.  
 

(b) a list of core services and non-core mental health services in each 
area be shared with the Committee once developed.  

 
(c) the data to evidence the increase in demand and complexity of 
Childrens Mental Health which included information around referral rates 

and ages with a comparison with national evidence be shared with the 
Committee. 

 
 

 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 6



 

Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 
Tuesday 21 March 2023 
 

Social Care Workforce Update 
 
Recommendations  

 
I recommend that the Committee: 

 
a. Notes the progress made by partners to date on the Staffordshire Social 

Care Workforce programme. 
 

b. Considers the on-going challenges faced by our social care workforce and 
the range of actions and initiatives identified by the programme to 
address these and continue to support the social care workforce.  

 
Local Member Interest: N/A 

 
Report of Councillor Julia Jessel, Cabinet Member for Health and 

Care  
 

Summary 
 

1. The Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy, endorsed by Cabinet 
on 18 January 2023, details our key actions as a collective partnership 

to support the on-going challenges faced by the Staffordshire social care 
workforce.   
 

2. Through the delivery of a range of actions and initiatives across partners, 
including the NHS, providers of social care, educational establ ishments 

and other training and skills providers, our mission is to develop a more 
resilient care sector, that enables more effective recruitment and 

retention in adults’ and children’s social care, based on person-centred 
and innovative ways of working.  

 

Report 
 
Key Data Relating to the Adult Social Care Workforce  

 
3. Our key adult social care workforce data is taken from Skills for Care 

Workforce Intelligence (2021/22).  Based on this source, there are 

21,000 filled posts in Staffordshire, the majority of which are located in 
the independent sector.  As anticipated, we have seen a downward turn 

in the overall number of persons employed in the sector in comparison 
to 2020/21 data. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

4. There are approx. 11,500 employees working in residential and nursing 

care settings (marking a reduction of approx. 500 staff), 7,200 providing 
home care (marking a reduction of approx. 700 staff) and 950 working 

in community-based care (including day opportunities).  In addition, 
there are an estimated 1,400 personal assistants (providing support to 

both children and adult, and on behalf of the NHS). 
 

5. In 2024, it is projected we will require a workforce of 23,983; taking into 
account the staff required due to an increase in demand and potential 
staff turnover, 6,336 new staff are required to meet our local needs.  In 

2027, the estimated number of new staff required is 16,463. 
 

Demography  
 

6. 86% of the overall workforce is female and 14% is male; these figures 
are typically mirrored in the make-up of our workforce leadership; this is 

not reflective of our general population make-up. 
 

7. 91% of our overall workforce is White, with 9% from Black, Asian and 

Ethnic minorities.  26% of the nurse workforce (in social care settings) 
from Black, Asian and Ethnic minorities 

 
8. The intelligence demonstrates however, the make-up of our workforce at 

a leadership differs, with only 3% from Black, Asian and Ethnic 
minorities. 

 
9. 10% of our workforce is under 25 years old, 64% of people aged 25 – 

54 years old and 27% aged 55 years and older, which aligns to our wider 

Staffordshire population (adults of working age).  
 

Recruitment and Retention  
 

10. In 2021/22, the overall turnover rate of the workforce is reported as 
32.2%, with 59% of leavers remaining in the social care workforce.  

Comparatively, in 2020/21, the turnover rate was 28.2%, with 64% 
remaining in the sector.  This increase is attributed to the economy re-
opening (COVID-19) and increased job opportunities in other sectors.  

 
11. The overall Staffordshire vacancy rate is reported as 9.9% (as 

anticipated), noting there are variations by service type and role.  There 
is a reported 16% vacancy rate for registered nurses, however a 5.7% 

vacancy rate for registered managers. 
 

12. Overall, Staffordshire reports 18% of the workforce are employed on 
zero-hour contracts.  However, there is significant variation by role and 

Page 8



 

service type.  42% of the home care workforce are reported to be 

employed on zero-hour contracts.  
 

Qualifications and Skills  
 

13. 54% of the workforce have either completed or are working towards the 
completion of the Care Certificate, which places us slightly ahead of the 

England Average (48%).  50% of the overall workforce report to have a 
qualification relevant to social care.  

 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce programme 
 

14. The Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy details our desired 
outcomes, the actions we as a partnership will take to achieve these and 

how we intend to measure the impact and our success. 
 

15. The Strategy is publicly available and will be formally launched at social 
care workforce celebration event on 19 April 2023. 
 

16. Our key actions to make a difference are included in the Strategy – for 
the purposes of implementation and delivery, there are 8 key 

workstreams focused on supporting our social care workforce: 
 

a. Data & intelligence: - to improve the usage of updated data and 
intelligence as a shared resource to support the social care workforce 

b. Information sharing: - promote available resources to providers 
more effectively, and engage with providers who need the most 
support to use these resources 

c. Journey to work: - Develop an improved journey to work, attracting 
people at every stage of their working lives 

d. Learning and Development: - Implement a co-ordinated approach 
to learning and development. 

e. Valuing social care: - improve the positive recognition of social care 
as a valued career 

f. Digitalisation: - increase the level of capability to use digital and 
technological innovations  

g. Recruitment and Retention: - support the improved practice across 

the sector in recruitment and business continuity planning  
h. Transport: - seek to reduce the transport costs where possible across 

the partnership  
 

17. A review of our intelligence data has identified key actions required 
aligning to the recommendations of the ‘Leadership for and Collaborative 

and inclusive Future’ report, recognising the real difference strong 
leadership makes to the quality of social care and the need for positive 

equality, diversity and inclusion action.  

Page 9



 

 

18. To support our current and future leaders, we have created a leadership 
welcome pack, which will be distributed to our existing leaders and all 

new recruits to Staffordshire.  In addition, we are co-producing a 
leadership training and support package with partners; our intention is 

to replicate these actions for registered nurses and clinical leadership 
roles in care homes.  

 
19. We are working with Wellbeing Hub colleagues to consider how we 

connect directly with employees, in addition to employers / 

organisations, so we can promote the range resources to support the 
physical, emotional and financial wellbeing of our workforce.  

 
20. Building on our demography and workforce needs, in partnership with 

ICS colleagues, in addition to utilising national recruitment campaigns, 
we are mapping a series localised targeted recruitment campaigns, for 

example young people, those considering early retirement and people 
with lived experience. 
 

21. On 28 March 2023, Skills for Care will host a workforce planning event 
to help further inform our local recruitment and retention needs.  We 

continue to develop our recruitment and retention toolkits and offer 
‘coaching’ to our local market, upon request.  

 
22. Partners across the Council, ICS and education providers are currently 

scoping a social care academy to support both our existing and 
perspective workforce, to aid learning, development and career 
progression.  We will prioritise promotion of our Workforce Development 

Fund (and related account requirements) to the workforce across 
2023/24. 

 
23. In addition to our annual Dignity in Care Awards, we are devising a 

second awards ceremony to celebrate innovation and best practice in the 
adult social care sector.   

 
24. Staffordshire is leading on the distribution of the Digital Transformation 

funding, to support registered care settings (across Staffordshire and 

Stoke) to switch to a digital social care record system.  
 

25. We continue to promote our Viv-up lifestyle and benefits scheme, 
offering discounts and savings to staff including on care maintenance and 

insurance costs.  We are looking to actively work with partners and local 
businesses to increase the provision of such benefits and discounts to 

our social care work force.  
 

Page 10



 

26. Pay continues to pose a challenge to the workforce, nationally and 

locally; as noted previously, the Strategy is not able to tackle this issue 
directly nor in isolation, including the level of funding available, but will 

continue to build, support and promote the sector to the best of the 
partnership’s ability.  The Council is finalising the outcome of the annual 

fee review process to support the market. 
 

27. The Council has recently published the outcome of the national Fair Cost 
of Care exercise and is due to publish the final version of its Market 
Sustainability Plan by 27 March 2023.  In addition, the Council is in the 

process of refreshing all relevant Market Position Statements.  
 

Link to Strategic Plan  
 

28. Have access to more good jobs and share the benefits of economic 
growth. 

 
29. Be healthier and independent for longer. 
 

Link to Other Overview and Scrutiny Activity 
 

N/A 
 

Community Impact 
 

See Appendix 4 
 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 

Appendix 1 – Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy  
 

Appendix 2 – Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy Summary 
 
Appendix 3 – Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Engagement Summary  

 
Appendix 4 – Community Impact Assessment  

 

Contact Details 
 
Assistant Director:  Andrew Jepps, Care Commissioning  

 
Report Author:   Amy Duffy 

Job Title:    Senior Commissioning Manager  
Telephone No.:   01785 277160 

E-Mail Address:           amy.duffy@staffordshire.gov.uk  

Page 11

mailto:amy.duffy@staffordshire.gov.uk




VALUING CAREERS IN CARE

Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce

STAFFORDSHIRE
SOCIAL CARE 
WORKFORCE
STRATEGY

P
age 13



3  Introduction

4 Summary

6  How did we develop our strategy?

8 What does our current workforce look like?

18 What challenges are we facing?

24  What has the workforce told us?

26  What has worked elsewhere?

28  What are our key issues and risks?

30    What are we doing to help shape the 
future of social care in Staffordshire?

32  How will we know if this is working?

35  Our key actions to make a difference

Contents
Social care is a major, and growing, economic sector in 
Staffordshire, with a workforce that aims to deliver good 
quality and effective care to support people with a range 
of needs, from the youngest to the most elderly in our 
community. 

Although many people working in social care find 
it fulfilling, recruitment and retention have been 
challenging for a number of years, and following the 
COVID-19 pandemic, there are now fewer people of 
working age in any job type, alongside a record number 
of vacancies in the wider economy.

Social care staff sometimes feel that their work is not 
valued, and constrained funding for social care services 
has led to pay rates often being lower than in competitor 
industries. The opportunities for career progression are 
sometimes limited, or not well understood.

Nationally there are long-term challenges for social 
care, and the level of funding available to local partners, 
and so it is not possible to resolve all those challenges 
locally – but we aim to build and support our social care 
workforce in Staffordshire to the best of our collective 
ability, working in partnership. This strategy outlines the 
practical approaches we are taking. 

Introduction

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 03

P
age 14



   •   Improve the usage of updated data and 
intelligence as a shared resource to support the 
social care workforce

  •   Promote available resources to providers more 
effectively, and engage with providers who need 
the most support to use those resources

  • Develop an improved journey into work
  •  Implement a co-ordinated partnership approach to 

learning and development

  •  Improve the positive recognition of social care as 
a valued career

  •  Increase the level of capability to use digital and 
technology innovations

  •  Support improved practice across the sector in 
recruitment and business continuity planning

  •  Seek to reduce travel costs where possible across 
the partnership

Summary
Our joint vision for the future is that 
the social care workforce provides 
highly valued, innovative and 
sustainable care in Staffordshire. 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy04 Valuing Careers in Care 05

Our mission is to develop a more resilient care sector that enables more 
effective recruitment and retention in adults’ and children’s social care, 
based on person-centred and innovative ways of working - for all social 
care workers, including those in regulated professions, across all sectors, 
attracting people at every stage of their working lives, including those at 
the start of their career.

Based on our understanding of the current and future social care 
workforce in Staffordshire, and the challenges it faces, we have agreed 
key actions to implement over the next two years, to make a difference.

We will:

P
age 15



Our local strategy is aligned to the national government’s ‘People at the 
Heart of Care: adult social care reform’1  and ‘Our vision for a future care 
workforce strategy’2.

This strategy is also part of our joint approach to developing the 
Staffordshire social care workforce across the Integrated Care System in 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent. It supports key system themes relating to 
health and wellbeing, growing the workforce, supporting inclusion, valuing 
and supporting leadership, new ways of working, training and developing 
talent, supporting wider social and economic development, supporting 
people services, skills and capabilities, workforce planning and development, 
and system development.

The skills element of our strategy contributes to the broader priorities of the 
Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (SSLEP) Skills 
Advisory Panel, which aims to support higher skilled, better paid and more 
productive jobs across the Staffordshire economy.  Through the digitisation 
of services, including the introduction of new technologies, there is a real 
opportunity to improve productivity and support longer term growth in the 
health and social care sector.

Our strategy (and proposed actions) aligns with the 'Leadership for a 
Collaborative and Inclusive Future report', recognising the real difference 
that good leadership can make in health and social care and the need for 
positive equality, diversity and inclusion action.3 

Alignment with other strategies

We have built a cross-sector partnership approach 
to develop this Staffordshire Social Care Workforce 
Strategy.  Representatives from a variety of bodies, 
including Staffordshire County Council, the NHS, the 
independent sector, education and training bodies, 
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) and others 
have worked collaboratively to:

  •  share what we know about the social care workforce
  • review and learn from good practice
  •  evaluate ideas on how to build and support the social 

care workforce
  • develop and take forward the strategy
  •  understand how we will monitor our impact and 

success as a partnership

How did we develop 
our strategy?

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy06 Valuing Careers in Care 07

P
age 16



This strategy covers a wide range of roles such as social workers and assessors, staff in care homes, home care and community-based care, including 
extra care, supported living and day opportunities, for adults, and for families and children with support and care needs. Our information comes 
from a range of sources which have been updated at different stages – and there is a significant variation in the data from these different sources. 

What does our current 
workforce look like? Pay levels

Many roles in the social care sector have a relatively low 
level of pay.

In 2021 the average Workplace Hourly Pay for all sectors 
in Staffordshire was £13.566.

The average pay for all independent sector adult social 
care roles was £10.25 (at March 2022), which was £1.34 
higher than the National Living Wage (this includes all job 
roles in the independent sector)7.

Average hourly rates of pay for children’s independent 
social care varied from £10.16 to £21.00 depending 
on the position (based on our local response from 14 
providers).8

The average full time annual pay for the social care sector 
in 2021 was £19,657, below the national average of 
£21,397, and considerably below the average workplace 
full time annual pay for all sectors in Staffordshire of 
£28,162.9

Size of the sector

49%  
were micro businesses with 

0-9 employees

37% 
were small businesses with 

10-49 employees

13% 
were medium businesses with 

50-249 employees

1% 
were medium businesses with 

250+ employees 5

The value of the social care sector in Staffordshire has 
grown over the last two decades4. The sector saw growth 
in employment prior to Brexit but saw a decline during 
EU transition and then a slight rise early in the pandemic.

Based on the Annual Business Survey (ABS) and the 
Business Register Employment Survey (BRES), social care 
employment in Staffordshire in 2020 was equivalent to 
3.8% of all employment, slightly lower than the 4.3% 
share for England. Across the Districts and Boroughs the 
size of the social care sector ranged from 2.3% – 6% 
of employment in Staffordshire.

Business size in 2021

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy08 09Valuing Careers in Care

P
age 17



In the wider potential workforce across the whole of Staffordshire, 
there is a good supply of general skills suitable for social care (such 
as good customer service), but there is a greater demand from 
employers for social care specific skills (such as personal care) than is 
available10. 

Levels of enrolment within sector specific training (Health and Social 
Care and Child Development and Wellbeing) have increased, despite 
education and training participation overall decreasing. There has 
also been an increase in Health and Social Care apprenticeships, 
although a decrease in those for Child Development and Wellbeing. 

Skills

Skills supply
Education and Training Learning Aim 
Enrolments by Sector Subject Area 11 

  •  The most directly related tier 2 learning aims for the social care 
sector are ‘Health and Social Care’ and ‘Child Development and 
Wellbeing’

  •  There were 5,820 ‘Health and Social Care’ aim enrolments in 
2020/21 representing 22.5% of all aims - a rise of 30 or 0.5% 
since 2018/19

  •  There were 510 ‘Child Development and Wellbeing’ aim 
enrolments in 2020/21 representing 2.0% of all aims – a rise of 
160 or 46% since 2018/19

  •  These rises are in contrast to a 19% decline for all education 
and training participation

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy10 11Valuing Careers in Care

Skills supply
Apprenticeship Starts by Sector 
Subject Area 12 

  •  There were 1,680 ‘Health and Social Care’ apprenticeship 
starts in 2020/21 representing 21.8% of all starts – the highest 
of all Tier 2 sector subject areas. This was a rise of 10 or 0.6% 
since 2018/19, which is in contrast to a 17% decline for all 
apprenticeships

  •  There were 480 ‘Child Development and Wellbeing’ starts in 
2020/21 representing 6.2% of all starts – a decline of 70 or 13% 
since 2018/19

P
age 18



§

Adult Social Care
Skills for Care estimates there are 21,000 filled posts in Staffordshire; 700 
are located in local authority roles and 17,500 of the Staffordshire social 
care workforce, working across a variety of roles, are employed by the 
independent sector13 .  The breakdown by service type is: 

There is low usage of zero hours contracts in care homes, but in home care 
services 42% of the workforce is on zero hours contracts (compared to 46% 
of all non-residential services across England)17.

1,400
Personal Assistants 
(inc. support to children)

11,500
Residential and 
nursing care

7,200
Home care

950
Community 
based care

(inc. day 
opportunities)

Demographics Adult Social Care14 Staffordshire 15 16  

Female 86% 50.5%

Male 14% 49.5%

Under 25 years 10% 11.9%

25 – 54 years 64% 60.7%

55 + (working age) 27% 27.5%

White 91% 95.5%

Black and other 
communities 9% 4.5%

British 93% 96.5%

EU 3% 2.1%

Outside EU 4% 1.5%

The biggest difference between the makeup of the Staffordshire social care 
workforce and the wider population is that many more women work in social 
care than men.

Service Contract type

Residential care Permanent 95%

Temporary/pool/bank 5%

Full time 49%

Zero hours 6%

Nursing care Permanent 94%

Temporary/pool/bank 6%

Full time 63%

Zero hours 5%

Home care Permanent 95%

Temporary/pool/bank 4%

Full time 37%

Zero hours 42%

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy12 Valuing Careers in Care 13

P
age 19



Recruitment and retention

According to the latest data from Skills for Care, turnover in 2021/22 is 32.2% - of which 59% remained in the sector. In 2021/22 vacancy rates and 
turnover both increased from the previous year, largely as a consequence of the end of lockdown and a widening of the economy and thus job 
opportunities18. 

There has been a significant increase in the vacancy rate for registered nurses in care homes, from 8.9% in 2020/21 to 16% in 2021/22.  Additionally, 
the turnover for registered nurses has risen from 47.3% to 55.4% in the same time period.

Qualifications

Across the adult social care workforce19, 54% of the 
workforce had completed or were working towards the 
Care Certificate, slightly more than across England (48%)20. 

73% of the workforce in a managerial role had a 
qualification relevant to social care, as did 49% of those 
providing direct care, broadly comparable to England 
figures.  

Completion of the Care Certificate by Personal Assistants 
was lower, at approximately 30%, although there is less 
data available regarding Personal Assistants and so this 
may not be an accurate estimate for this cohort.21 

The average age of qualified social workers is lower than other roles, with safeguarding social workers having both the 
lowest average age (36 years) and service with Staffordshire County Council (3.9 years compared to 8.1 years average). 
The turnover is 2021/22 is 16%, higher than the previous year by around 5%. Turnover in social work posts is highest in 
safeguarding roles.

Adult Social Care 
2020/21

Adult Social Care 
2021/22 

Turnover 28.2% 32.2%

Leavers remaining in sector 64% 59%

Vacancy rates (Ind and LA): 

Average 6.5% 9.9%

Registered managers 7.4% 5.7%

Senior care workers 8.7% 13.5%

Care workers 6.3% 10.5%

Registered nurses 8.9% 16%

Sickness rate (av) 9 days 9.4 days 

Average experience in sector 8.9 years 9.1 years

Valuing Careers in Care 15Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy14

Roles

Children's & Family Services Family Time Workers

Residential Care WorkersFamily Practitioners

788

210

40

80
Personal Advisors

40

Social Workers & 
Senior Practitioners

330
Management/Leadership

80

There is not a data source such as Skills for Care available 
for the children’s social care workforce and so we have 
much less information about this sector.

Staffordshire County Council employs many in the children’s 
social care workforce, with independent children's providers 
mainly providing residential care. 

The information below relates to Staffordshire County 
Council’s own staff.

Social care for children

P
age 20



Demographics

Demographic data about the children's independent sector is drawn for the 14 providers 
who responded to our survey, and so may not be representative of the sector as a whole.

Based on the 14 providers who responded to our survey, 
20% of the independent children’s social care workforce 
have no social care qualifications. 6% have entry level/
level 1, 4% have level 2, 51% have level 3 and 19% have 
level 4 or above. Social workers are qualified to degree 
level (level 5).

Recruitment and retention:

Demographics
Staffs. 
County 
Council  

Independent Staffordshire 
15 & 16

Female 88% 77% 50.5%
Male 12% 23% 49.5%

Under 25 3% 11% 11.9%

25-54 79% 81% 60.7%

55+ 18% 8% 27.5%

White 73% 77% 95%

Other ethnic groups 12% 23% 4.7%

Unknown 15% - -

British 38% 84% 96.5%

EU 1% 2% 2.1%

Outside EU 0% 14% 1.5%

Unknown 61% - -

Location Contract type

Staffordshire 
County Council 

Permanent 90%

Temporary/pool/bank 10%

Full time 76%

Zero hours 6%

Independent Permanent 93%

Temporary/pool/bank 4%

Full time 67%

Zero hours 3%

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy16 Valuing Careers in Care 17

Staffs. County 
Council Independent 

Turnover 13% 23.9%

Vacancy rates  Not available 
at this time 9%

Years in role:

<3 31%

3-9 48%

10+ 21%

P
age 21



What challenges 
are we facing?
The local employment market in 
Staffordshire
COVID-19 has had an unprecedented impact on the economy. The 
employment and skills landscape has changed considerably, in a relatively 
short space of time.  Nationally, there has been a decline in the overall 
workforce due to:

  • an increase in economic inactivity
  • an increase in the number of people 50 years and older retiring 
  • an increase in the number of young people staying in education
  • a decrease in migration 

Locally, the number of working age adults claiming work-related benefits 
continues to decrease, primarily due to the record high number of job 
vacancies to aid recovery from the pandemic.  Between March and April 
2022, there was a 3.1% decrease, which was similar to the national decline 
of 3.5%24 25 . 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy18 Valuing Careers in Care 19

P
age 22



Adult Social Care
The health and social care sector (SIC 2007) is projected to have the largest growth 
between 2017-2027 in Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Local Enterprise Partnership 
(SSLEP) with an employment increase of 6.2% or 6,000.

Adult social care is expected to see a growth in demand for workforce, broadly in 
line with the projected growth of the population aged 65 and above. The below 
shows an illustration of the demand.

Projected Year

Estimated 
workforce 
requirement

Extra staff 
needed due to 
increased demand 
compared to 2022

Impact of 
potential staff 
turnover

Total new staff required 
compared to 2022 
(increased demand + 
sector leavers)

2024 (+2 years) 23,983    +920  +5,416   +6,336
2027 (+ 5 years) 25,575 +2,512 +13,951 +16,463
2032 (+10 years) 28,506 +5,443 +29,505 +34,948

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy20 Valuing Careers in Care 21

It is projected 

34,948 
new recruits would be needed by 

2032, most of these to replace 
people who leave the sector25. This 
estimate is particularly sensitive to 

turnover (retention) rates.

P
age 23



Based on latest projections from the ONS, Staffordshire’s 
0–17-year-old population compared to 2022 is expected 
to increase 0.2% by 2024, reduce by 0.3% by 2027 and 
reduce by 1.8% by 2032. 

Any increases in demand in children’s social care are likely 
to be driven by an increase in the level of their needs and 
national policy, as opposed to demographics. This may 
lead to changes such as:

  •  the balance of staff required in future years between 
Family Practitioners, qualified social workers, and 
managers

  •  the number of staff needed to provide direct support 
and hold reviews

Whilst the projections indicate a longer-term reduction 
in the needs of Staffordshire children, many other local 
authorities use independent sector children’s provision in 
Staffordshire, meaning we cannot project the demand for 
local independent provision accurately.27

Social care for children

2022 2024 2027 2032

Projected Year Current staffing Recruitment required to maintain current capacity

Qualified Social 
Worker roles 402 +110 +274 +540

Other roles 386 +82 +205 +410
All roles 788 +192 +479 +950

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy22 Valuing Careers in Care 23

P
age 24



''
''

What has the workforce told us?
We asked the Staffordshire social care workforce and providers for their 
views on the strengths, challenges and opportunities for the social care 
sector within Staffordshire, through surveys and focus groups. 323 survey 
responses were received.  

Engagement showed us that the majority of the current Staffordshire social 
care workforce do really enjoy their job, as it gives them an opportunity to 
make a difference. Pay and benefits are seen as both a challenge and an 
opportunity. People working in social care want the opportunity to progress 
in their careers, and changing public perception about working in social care 
would aid recruitment. 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy24 Valuing Careers in Care 25

I love getting to know the people I support 
and their families... I feel we make a real 
difference in helping families getting a 
break from their caring role.

69%
38%

22%

Wanted 
to make a 
difference

Made best 
use of my 
skills and 

experience

Recommended 
by family or 

friends

4 out of 5
satisfied with 
current job

3 out of 5
recommend 
working in 
social care

1 out of 5
considering 

leaving in next 
12 months

...however

Key reasons for considering leaving include:

Pay and financial pressures Work-related pressures

Personal health Levels of stress

Individuals' Survey 
Summary Headlines

Most important for employees

Work life balance
165 people

Ability to make a 
difference
155 people

Pay
146 people

Top suggestions to encourage more to enter/remain in social care

Pay and Benefits
120 people

"rewarding pay, overtime enhancements, 
sick pay, healthcare benefits"

Progression/training
30 people

"good quality training so staff have the 
knowledge to perform their tasks to 
their best ability and gain greater job 
satisfaction"

Expenses including mileage
30 people

"support with repairs, insurance and 
mileage"

Improve image of social care
30 people

"promote a better reputation for care... a 
worthwhile, rewarding career that people 
should aspire to"

9 out of 10
struggling to recruit staff

Organisation Survey - 
Summary Headlines

5 out of 10
struggling to retain staff

Main recruitment challenges

Better pay outside of the sector
48 organisations

Cost/distance of travel
33 organisations

Perception of working in 
social care
27 organisations

Work-life balance
25 organisations

Successful recruitment/retention initiatives
• Improving pay (14 organisations)

• Making staff feel more valued (10 organisations)

• Support with transport costs (9 organisations)

• Better pay/conditions

• Recruitment support - advertising and campaigns

• Transport help - discounts, free travel

Most useful additional support in recruitment would be:

P
age 25



What has worked elsewhere?

• improving training and support for people entering care roles
• values-based recruitment
• better co-ordination of recruitment
• joint working across the sector to address skills gaps
• targeting support for small and medium enterprises
•  developing co-ordinated training, skills and recruitment (e.g. through an 

academy)
• working jointly to bid for potential funding sources

• establish clearer career structures for the workforce
• engaging with potential workforce from school-age onwards
• recognising and rewarding experience and length of service 
•  utilising ambassadors to improve the image of the sector, because 

changing the public perception is key to success
•  promoting best practice where international recruitment is taking place
•  thinking digitally to improve quality, efficiency and ‘customer experience 

thinking'

Local and national 
We have looked at good practice within social care and other sectors, locally and nationally.  This includes:

• reducing bureaucracy 
• developing local teams with strong local connections
•  developing solution-focused skills within teams (focussing on coaching and 

a culture of continuous improvement as opposed to ‘command and control’ 
approaches)

• co-producing solutions with both workforce and people who receive support

Some international models of care (such as the Buurtzorg model of 
community nursing care from the Netherlands) combine strength-
based practice with the model of self-managed teams.23 Whilst social 
care is structured and funded differently in the UK, there are still 
some key principles that can be promoted locally: 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy26 Valuing Careers in Care 27

P
age 26



What are our key issues 
and risks?
The key issues and risks for the social care workforce in Staffordshire are summarised below.  

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy28 Valuing Careers in Care 29

     Strengths

  •  Large and growing sector of the economy 
(contributing £51.5 billion to the economy 
nationally)30 

  •  The majority of the local workforce find 
social care a rewarding career31

  •  An improving public perception of the value 
of social care sector following COVID-19

     Weaknesses

  • Key labour and skills shortage
  •  Lack of sustainable, redirectable 

investment in social care
  •  Lack of awareness about social care 

career pathway and opportunities

     Opportunities

  •  New ways of working, including digital 
opportunities

  •  Strengths-based ways of working, with a 
stronger role for the ‘front line’

  •  Cross sector partnership approach

       Threats

  •  Current competition with other sectors 
of the economy and relatively low rates 
of unemployment32

  •  Work / life balance during peaks of 
demand (i.e. COVID-19)

  • The impact of the cost-of-living crisis 

P
age 27



Our joint vision for the future is that the social care workforce provides 
highly valued, innovative and sustainable care in Staffordshire. 

Our mission is to develop a more resilient care sector that enables 
more effective recruitment and retention in adults’ and children’s social 
services, based on person-centred and innovative ways of working - for 
all social care workers including those in regulated professions across 
the public and independent sector, attracting people at every stage of 
their working lives, including those at the start of their career.

What are we doing to help shape the 
future of social care in Staffordshire?

We will do this through:

  •  working collaboratively to support each employer to be the best 
that they can in recruiting, retaining and developing their own 
teams

  •  working in partnership to carry out targeted local recruitment 
campaigns, promoting the sectors in schools and with potential job 
applicants, building a consistent and co-ordinated local skills offer, 
and promoting the value of the social care sector

  •  jointly making the case for fair and sustainable funding for the social 
care sector

We cannot address all the challenges facing the Staffordshire social care 
workforce locally. Some require a consistent and sustainable long-term 
national funding approach. However, we will work together to do all 
that we can to make the difference to social care in Staffordshire.

We have set out our outcomes in the 'How will we know if this is 
working?' section from page 32.

We have set out our actions to  make a difference in the first two years 
of the strategy on pages 35, 36 and 37.

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy30 Valuing Careers in Care 31

P
age 28



Our outcomes for this strategy are set out below. We will use a 
range of data and intelligence, including an annual workforce survey 
in Staffordshire, to help understand the difference we are making. 

How will we know 
if this is working?

  Outcomes   Measures

1.1

A social care 
workforce that has 
the right capacity to 
manage predicted 
demand

1.1a A workforce with the right type and number of roles to 
meet demand

  Reduction in the number of vacancies

   Reduction in the level of turnover resulting in 
exit from the sector

  Reduction in the level of sickness absence

   Improvements in the percentage of care 
arrangements put in place within target 
timescales

   Caseloads consistent with professional 
standards

   Reduction in levels of zero hours contracts in 
home care services

1.1b A workforce at full complement

1.1c A workforce that maintains personal wellbeing

1.2

Flexibility in 
the social care 
workforce to 
cover periods of 
fluctuating demand/ 
uncertainty

1.2a A workforce where staff have skills to cover more than 
one role or to safely flex tasks within their existing role

1.2b
A workforce where sufficient staff are willing and able to 
increase or decrease their hours of work to meet business 
need

  Outcomes   Measures

2.1

A social care 
workforce that is 
representative of 
the local population

2.1a A workforce that is recruited from the local population
     Closer match between the demography 

in the local areas of Staffordshire and the 
demography within the social care workforce

   Closer match between the demography of 
the social care workforce in Staffordshire and 
the demography of leadership in social care

2.1b An inclusive workforce that is representative of the 
diversity of the local population

2.1c A workforce where those in senior roles reflect the 
diversity of the local population

2.2

Social care is a 
career aspiration 
across the whole life 
course

2.2a More young people want to have care as a career 
aspiration

2.2b Social care as a career is an opportunity, available for all 
ages of the population

1.  More resilience 2.  More effective recruitment

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy32 Valuing Careers in Care 33

P
age 29



  Outcomes   Measures

4.1

A social care 
workforce that 
operates in a 
strength-based and 
outcome-focussed 
way

4.1a A workforce that uses strength-based practice to help 
those they support achieve their goals

    Improved average scores based on a self-
assessment tool completed by the social 
care workforce to review our practices and 
progress

4.1b The right outcomes are achieved for those supported by 
the workforce

4.2

A digitally/ 
technologically 
skilled social care 
workforce

4.2a A workforce that is able to use technology to do their job 
well

4.2b A workforce which is able to help those who need support 
to use technology to maintain independence

4.  Innovative ways of working

3.  More effective retention

  Outcomes   Measures

3.1

A social care 
workforce that 
is competent, 
well trained and 
supported to be the 
best they can be

3.1a There are in-role training and development opportunities 
for all social care roles      Improved percentage of the social care 

workforce who report that they have 
sufficient training opportunities to support 
their career development

    Improved percentage of the social care 
workforce who report that they feel valued 
by their employers and the public, and 
rewarded by their employers

3.1b There are career development and progression 
opportunities for all roles within the workforce

3.2

A social care 
workforce that is, 
and feels, valued 
and rewarded

3.2a A workforce that feels valued by its employers

3.2b A workforce that feels valued by the public

3.2c A workforce that feels rewarded by its employers

The table below sets out how we will work collaboratively to achieve these outcomes. These are the actions which we will take forward during the first 
two years of the strategy. Some will continue throughout the lifetime of the strategy, and other actions may be added to continue to achieve the overall 
outcomes. The actions are linked to Outcomes 1-4 (more resilience, more effective recruitment, more effective retention and innovative ways of working).

Our key actions to make a difference

  Action Detailed action Outcomes

1

Improve the usage 
of updated data 
and intelligence as a 
shared resource to 
support the social 
care workforce

1.1 Measure progress against the outcomes at least annually

1, 2, 3, 41.2 Update projections of demand at least annually

1.3 Review and agree priority training needs at least annually

2

Promote available 
resources to 
providers more 
effectively, and 
engage with 
providers who need 
the most support to 
use those resources

2.1 Promote the ICS Wellbeing Hub and other wellbeing resources 1

2.2 Promote the use of good practice toolkits to support recruitment and retention 2, 3

2.3 Develop further peer support and networking opportunities 1, 2, 3, 4

2.4 Develop opportunities for Personal Assistants to benefit from resources and support available to the 
social care workforce 1, 2, 3, 4

2.5 Expand Mental Health First Aider training 1

34 35Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy Valuing Careers in Care

P
age 30



  Action Detailed action Outcomes

3
Develop an 
improved journey 
into work

3.1
Develop and implement an enhanced model of engaging with school and other entry routes to the 
sector, joined up across local partners including Staffordshire County Council and the NHS, and 
incorporating technology and virtual experiences, making career pathways more visible 1, 2, 3, 4

3.2 Encourage providers to offer more opportunities for work experience and placements, supported by 
Staffordshire County Council, the NHS/ICS and local training providers

3.3

Encourage providers to support an increased number of apprenticeships (including social care 
Trainee Nursing Associates supported by Health Education England funding) within local care 
services, supported by partners to reduce bureaucracy where possible and provide a wide range of 
training opportunities during the apprenticeship

1, 2, 3, 4

3.4 Encourage and share toolkits and resources with providers to implement high quality recruitment 
processes, with fast decision-making and a reduction in any unnecessary bureaucracy or barriers 1, 2, 3, 4

4

Implement a 
co-ordinated 
partnership 
approach to learning 
and development

4.1 Develop and promote a high-quality local training offer to support leadership skills within care 
services 1, 2, 3, 4

4.2 Develop and promote a high-quality local training offer for skills which are identified as a quality 
challenge within the local care sector 3, 4

4.3 Develop and promote a high-quality local training offer for skills linked to the strategic development 
of the workforce – in strength-based care, in digital skills and in use of technology 3, 4

4.4 Scope the potential for a new or enhanced Social Care Academy to bring together the local offer of 
training and development for key skills 1, 2, 3, 4

4.5 Develop a training approach for people who are new to care, utilising offers of partnership training 
including training offered by the ICS People Hub / NHS 2, 3, 4

5

Improve the positive 
recognition of social 
care as a valued 
career

5.1 Extend a wide range of training and development offers and support (where available to local health 
and public sector workers) to the wider social care workforce 1, 3, 4

5.2 Extend a wide range of lifestyle benefits offers (where available to local health and public sector 
workers) to the wider social care workforce 1, 3, 4

5.3 Increase events and mechanisms (such as Care Awards) designed to recognise and valued best 
practice in the sector 1, 3, 4

5.4 Increase opportunities for frontline care staff to act as trusted assessors and valued participants in 
multi-disciplinary working 1, 3, 4

  Action Detailed action Outcomes

5

Improve the positive 
recognition of social 
care as a valued 
career

5.5 Develop and implement support networks for key leadership roles, supported by partners across the 
health and care system 1, 2, 3, 4

5.6 Identify and progress reductions in bureaucracy where this does not adversely affect safe and 
effective care 3, 4

5.7 Across local and national networks, make the case for promoting social care as a valued career, and 
for a fair and sustainable funding approach for the sector 1, 2, 3, 4

6

Increase the level 
of capability 
to use digital 
and technology 
innovations

6.1 Actively encourage take up of digital social care records, virtual multi-disciplinary working, sensor-
based and other technology 4

6.2 Increase the availability of local high-quality training for digital skills 4

6.3 Promote the adoption of digital working practices within the sector 4

6.4 Promote digital champions within the sector 4

7

Support improved 
practice across the 
sector in recruitment 
and business 
continuity planning

7.1 Enhance and relaunch Staffordshire’s I-Care Ambassadors scheme (experienced staff who are willing 
to promote the sector) 1

7.2 Encourage all providers to use toolkits and other good practice materials to support values-based 
recruitment and for recruitment practices to support equality, diversity and inclusion 1

7.3 Connect with any national and regional recruitment campaigns 1

7.4
Across partners, including providers, Staffordshire County Council and the NHS, carry out co-ordinated 
recruitment campaigns, focusing on recruiting people who are new to care, people from underrepresented 
groups, younger people and people with prior experience or awareness of care services

1

7.5 Continue to develop the Care Reservists model jointly across the NHS and social care 1

8

Seek to reduce 
travel costs where 
possible across the 
partnership

8.1 Explore the potential to subsidise/support transport costs 1

8.2 Encourage lifestyle benefits providers and other agencies to offer deals related to transport costs 1,3

8.3 Promote collaborative working between providers to reduce unnecessary journeys where possible 
and appropriate 3

36 37Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy Valuing Careers in Care

P
age 31



Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy38 Valuing Careers in Care 39

SARCP, Staffordshire Care Association, have 
been actively engaged in the formulation of the 
Workforce Strategy and have been able to work 
with all partners to build on the understanding 
of Adult Social Care’s current recruitment and 
retention issues and commit to the ongoing 
improvement activities to maximise impact
for the sector.

Julie Harding - SARCP Staffordshire Care 
Association

The overall process and development of 
the strategy has been a collaboration of a 
range of partners/stakeholders including 
local care providers. Long term this can only 
enhance working relationships between the 
Local Authority and the market and in turn 
support the development of a sufficient and 
appropriately skilled workforce in Staffordshire 
to deliver high quality delivery of support 
and address the issues being experienced 
across the social care and health system within 
Staffordshire.

Shirley Way - Skills for Care

It has been extremely useful to be involved in the 
development of the Strategy. Getting skills and 
recruitment right in any sector is a challenge but 
approaching it in this way can surely deliver the 
results needed to enable the sector to respond to 
the ongoing and future challenges it faces. 

Andy Greenhough - Staffordshire 
Partnership for Employment & Skills

From across the 
partnership

1. People at the Heart of Care: adult social care reform
2. Our vision for a future care workforce strategy | Local Government Association
3. Leadership for a Collaborative and Inclusive Future report 
4. Measured by Gross Value Added
5. Source: ONS UK Business Counts (IDBR based data) - https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/
6. Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ASHE)
7. Source: Skills for Care 2021/22 Dataset
8. Staffordshire County Council insight report
9.  Source: EMSI social care sector Staffing Patterns Data in Staffordshire excluding child 

day care activities - based on Labour Force Survey microdata and Annual Survey of 

Hours and Earnings (ASHE) - https://www.economicmodelling.co.uk/
10. Appendix: Reference graphs
11.  Source: DfE Localism Dashboard Education & Training Participation - https://

viewyourdata.education.gov.uk/ – NOTE: Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire data 
12.  Source: DfE Localism Dashboard Apprenticeship Starts - https://viewyourdata.

education.gov.uk/ – NOTE: Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire data 
13. Source: Skills for Care 2021/22 Dataset
14. Source: Skills for Care 2021/22 Dataset
15.  https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/announcements/ethnic-group-national-

identity-language-and-religion-census-2021-in-england-and-wales
16.  https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/

populationandmigration/internationalmigration/datasets/

populationoftheunitedkingdombycountryofbirthandnationality 
17. Source: Skills for Care 2021/22 Dataset

18. Source: Skills for Care 2021/22 Dataset
19. Source: Skills for Care, data for 2020/21
20.  Although the Care Certificate is available to all, the main target is workers who are new 

to social care
21. Source: Skills for Care, data for 2020/21
22.  Source: Claimant Count, April 2022, Office for National Statistics (ONS) - https://www.

nomisweb.co.uk/
23.  Source: Staffordshire County Council Economic Bulletin, May 2022 – monthly Claimant 

Count update provided each month - https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Business/

Staffordshire-means-Back-to-Business-Support-Scheme/Economic-recovery-and-

renewal/Economic-recovery-and-renewals.aspx
24.  Source:  'Office for National Statistics 2018 Based Population Projections
25.  Source: Skills for Care Dataset & Staffordshire County Council Insight Team Projection
26. Source: 'Office for National Statistics 2018 Based Population Projections
27.  Source: Staffordshire County Council - Families and Community Human Resources 
28.  The summary report of this and associated appendices can be found at www.

staffordshire.gov.uk/futuresocialcareworkforce
29. Buurtzorg Nederland
30. Source: Skills for Care, data for 2020/21
31.  Insert reference to summary report/appendix weblink here once uploaded
32.  Source: Staffordshire County Council Economic Bulletin, May 2022 – monthly Claimant 

Count update provided each month - https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Business/

Staffordshire-means-Back-to-Business-Support-Scheme/Economic-recovery-and-

renewal/Economic-recovery-and-renewals.aspx

References

''

''

''

''
''

''

I’m delighted with how many partners have 
come together to progress the strategy for the 
future social care workforce in Staffordshire.  
Whilst social care is a fulfilling choice of careers 
for most people, the only way we will address 
the challenges of the sector is by working 
together.’

Julia Jessel - Cabinet Member for Health 
and Care - Staffordshire County Council

''
''

I am incredibly proud of everything our ICS 
and Social Care partnership has achieved for 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent’s current 
and future workforce in recent years; and that 
partnership continues to go from strength to 
strength as we move towards a ‘One Workforce’ 
approach. 

Through our continued collaboration I’m 
confident we’ll create new and innovative 
opportunities for our future workforce and 
therefore provide the very best care for  
our local population

Alex Brett - Chief People Officer, 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent ICB

''

''

P
age 32



This document is available in large text, braille or alternative languages 
on request by emailing: communications@staffordshire.gov.uk

• Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Local Enterprise Partnership
• Department for Work and Pensions
• Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Careers Hub
• Staffordshire Partnership for Employment and Skills
• Horxon Care
• PACE UK
• Health Education England (NHS)
• Lichfield District Council

• South Staffordshire College
• Newcastle and Stafford Colleges Group
• Buxton and Leek College
• Burton and South Derbyshire College
• Staffordshire University
• Keele University
• Wolverhampton University

Contributing partners:

Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce

Linking in with Borough and District 
Councils across Staffordshire

P
age 33





Staffordshire Social Care 
Workforce Strategy 2022-2027
A summary
What’s happening?
This is a summary of our strategy for the future social care 
workforce in Staffordshire. Social care in Staffordshire 
is facing the same challenges as everywhere in the UK, 
including growing demand and difficulties in recruiting 
and retaining staff. 

We are working together as partners from across adults’ 
and children’s social care, including the independent, 
public and voluntary sector.

Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Our mission is to develop a more 
resilient care sector that enables 
more effective recruitment and 
retention in adults’ and children’s 
social care, based on person-centred 
and innovative ways of working.

You can read our detailed strategy, or find out more 
about how we are working together to support our 
social care workforce in Staffordshire, at 
www.valuingsocialcareinstaffs.co.uk Page 35



1. Improve the usage of updated 
data and intelligence as a shared 
resource to support the social 
care workforce

2. Promote available resources 
to providers more effectively, 
and engage with providers who 
need the most support to use 
those resources

3. Develop an improved journey 
into work

4. Implement a co-ordinated 
partnership approach to 
learning and development

5. Improve the positive recognition 
of social care as a valued career

6. Increase the level of capability 
to use digital and technology 
innovations

7. Support improved practice 
across the sector in recruitment 
and business continuity  
planning

8. Seek to reduce travel costs 
where possible across the 
partnership

To make a difference over 
the next two years we will:

OUTCOME: 
A more resilient workforce

Our workforce will:
•  have the right capacity to manage 

predicted demand
•  be flexible to cover periods of fluctuating 

demand/uncertainty

OUTCOME: 
More effective recruitment

Our workforce will:
• be representative of the local population
•  see social care as a career aspiration, 

across the whole life course

Our workforce will:
•  be competent, well trained and supported 

to be the best they can
• be, and feel, valued and rewarded

OUTCOME: 
More effective retention

Our workforce will:
•  operate in a strengths based and outcome 

focussed way
•  be digitally/technologically skilled

OUTCOME: 
Innovative ways of working

This document is available in large text, braille 
or alternative languages on request by emailing 

communications@staffordshire.gov.uk

You can read our detailed strategy and find out more about 
how we are working together to support the Staffordshire 
social care workforce at valuingsocialcareinstaffs.co.uk/

Page 36



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care 
Workforce Strategy 2022-2027

Engagement 
Summary Report

Page 37



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 2

Engagement Summary Report

Key Messages
 •  Current social care employees responding to the survey reported high levels of job satisfaction 

and advocacy, with the overriding reason being that they enjoyed what they did – something 
positive to build on.

 •  Despite this, organisations still reported major challenges in recruiting staff, and some 
difficulties in retaining staff. This was substantiated by almost 20% of survey respondents 
working in the sector suggesting that they might be leaving their role or the sector within the 
next 12 months.

 •  Work-life balance, the ability to make a difference and pay were the most important factors 
to the survey cohort; yet pay and work-life balance were also two areas where they were least 
satisfied – suggesting potential factors to look at to drive up job satisfaction.

 •  Pay and benefits appears to present the biggest challenge for both recruitment and retention.
 •  Beyond pay and benefits, the most frequently cited ways from survey responses to improve 

working in the sector were; better expense payments including mileage, and improving training 
and progression opportunities. Some local organisations have introduced successful initiatives 
around these challenges that we could learn from and further develop.

 •  Successful initiatives do not always have to be costly; through simple cost-free methods such as 
saying thank you, and introducing an employee of the month, some responding organisations 
felt they had made staff feel more valued and, in turn, improved retention.

 •  Linked to staff feeling more valued, respondents suggested that social care roles were not seen 
as equal to those in health care. Raising the public profile and perception of working in the 
sector might in turn, make social care staff feel more valued and improve retention, and attract 
more into the profession.

 •  Several responding organisations welcomed future support with the recruitment process itself; 
for example, support with where to advertise, access to jobs fairs, and financial assistance with 
promotion and marketing.

Background
Introduction
A programme of engagement was undertaken to provide the current and future adults and children’s 
social care workforce with the opportunity to put forward their views about the strengths, challenges 
and opportunities that exist within the Staffordshire social care workforce. In addition to individuals 
in the social care workforce, providers and employers were also given the opportunity to put forward 
their views. The views of all participants would feed into the development of an ambitious countywide 
workforce strategy to help realise the vision of a stable, recognised, skilled, capable, innovate and 
resilient local social care workforce.

This report provides a summary of the findings of this engagement work, setting out the results and the 
key themes captured.

Page 38



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 3

Engagement Summary Report

Methodology
The engagement took place between 1st June and the end of July 2022 and included two online surveys, 
one with current and prospective social care employees, and the other with organisations involved in 
social care provision. In addition, a series of face-to-face focus groups were held with key staff groups, to 
provide additional insight alongside the survey results.

The survey for individuals working in, or looking to enter, the social care sector ran from 1st June 2022 to 
6th July 2022. The survey for organisations involved in social care provision ran from 10th June 2002 to 
6th July 2022. All focus groups took place throughout July 2022.

A cross system effort was made to promote participation in the survey and attendance at focus groups. 
Key channels included:

 •  Staffordshire partners sharing promotional materials with their contacts and through their social 
media channels. This included health trusts, universities, the voluntary sector and social care 
providers.

 •  Staffordshire County Council promoting though its social media accounts (Facebook, Instagram, 
and Twitter) and asking partners to share and retweet.

 •  Advertisements in Staffordshire County Council job email bulletins (over 6,222 recipients) and 
two My Staffordshire bulletins (both sent to over 14,300 recipients).

In the penultimate week of the engagement period, further promotional activity was undertaken to warn 
of the approaching deadline using the channels detailed above and, in addition, two advocate videos 
were created and shared. These videos focused on the benefits of completing the survey and how 
responses would make a difference; these were viewed over 3,650 times.

Responses
In total the two surveys received 323 responses: 261 from individuals and 62 from organisations1.

92% of respondents (239 individuals) currently worked in social care with the remaining 8% (22 
individuals) interested in a career in social care.

Due to the timing of the survey, around examinations and school/college holidays, responses from the 
prospective workforce were small. A range of partnerships were utilised to target this audience, sharing 
bespoke promotional information with jobs, careers and further and higher education partners such as 
the National Careers Service, the Careers and Enterprise Company, the Careers Hubs, the countywide 
Employment Group and the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent LEP. Social media influencers were also 
targeted to encourage interaction with a younger audience.

1 261 responses from individuals, based on a workforce of approximately 21,800 represents an acceptable margin of error of +/- 6% at County 
level, with result being statistically robust at the 95% confidence level. Looking at survey results for subsets of respondents should be treated 
with extreme caution as numbers are likely to be very small and not necessarily representative of the group as a whole.

Page 39



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 4

Engagement Summary Report

More in-depth views were also captured as part of the face-to-face focus group engagement, which were 
attended by approximately 70 current and prospective social care workers in total.

Responses by geographical area were well spread, but not sufficient in terms of numbers (between 21-35 
respondents per district/borough) to look at geographical variation in opinion.

Due to the number of respondents to the survey, it is not appropriate to look for variation in opinion 
between different groups, such as role type or by sector, as they would not be statistically robust. 
However, whilst survey response numbers were relatively small, they do provide a local picture of the key 
opportunities and issues, alongside our focus group findings, that can be considered in the round with 
national data and research.

Page 40



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 5

Engagement Summary Report

Respondent Profile
Figure 1: Key characteristics of 261 individual respondents

16% Male 83% Female
* The rest preferred 

not to say

91% White-British

Aged 55+

Aged  
under 25+

Aged 25 - 54

31%

5%

64%

8% 92%

Interested 
in working 
in social care

Working in social care

49%

18%

15%

5%

6%

8%

15+ Years

10 - 14 Years

5 - 9 Years

3 - 4 Years

1 - 2 Years

Less than a Year

Number of years working in social care

Adult’s 
Sector

Children’s 
Sector

Other

88%

7% 5%
37% managerial or supervisory
29% direct care
23% regulated professional role
11% other

Sector

*

Page 41



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 6

Engagement Summary Report

Survey responses compared to the Staffordshire social care workforce:
 • Females were slightly over-represented.
 •  Under 25 year olds slightly under-represented and over 55 year olds over-represented.
 •  Majority of respondents were White-British; the proportion was in-line with the local social care 

workforce.
 •  Although responses from the children’s sector were small (17 responses), compared to the 

estimated size of the local children’s social care workforce in comparison to the adults’ 
workforce, they are over-represented in survey responses.

 •  Regulated professionals and managerial/supervisory were over-represented in survey 
responses.

 •  The number of years’ experience in the sector appeared to be higher for respondents than in 
the general Staffordshire social care workforce. 67% of respondents had worked in social care 
for 10+ years, compared to 33% of the local adult social care workforce as reported by skills for 
care. Note, no data is available for length of service in the local children’s social care sector.

Figure 2: Key characteristics of 62 organisational responses

Organisation Type Number of 
Responses

% of 
Responses

Independent Provider of Care Services (Adults) 43 70%
Public Sector Employer of Care Workers (Adults) 5 8%
NHS 5 8%
Other 4 7%
Independent Provider of Care Services (Children’s) 2 3%
Public Sector Employer of Care Workers (Children’s) 2 3%

Of the 61 organisations that provided more details about their organisation:
 • 70% were independent providers of adult care services.
 • Just 4 were from the children’s sector.
 •  As a result of the above, responses from organisations should be viewed as a whole, rather than 

split by organisation type.
 •  Most district/boroughs had a handful of responses therefore, it is not possible to view 

organisational responses by geography. It is also likely that these organisations would have 
clients that cross district/borough boundaries so also it may not be appropriate to view the 
responses geographically either.

Page 42



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 7

Engagement Summary Report

Survey Findings
Working in Social Care

 •  The most frequently cited sectors that respondents had worked in prior to social care  
were ‘retail and sales’ and ‘education’ – possible employment sectors to target with  
future recruitment campaigns. 

 •  Wanting to ‘make a difference’ was the most common reason why participants were  
attracted to working in the sector and remained one of the most important factors once 
working in the sector.

Almost half (49%) of respondents working in social care had always worked in the sector. For those that 
had worked elsewhere, ‘retail and sales’ was the most popular sector to have worked in previously (30 
respondents) followed by ‘education’ (12 respondents). Whilst this may provide employment sectors to 
focus on, focus group attendees and national research highlights the importance of getting the ‘right’ 
candidates with the necessary values and behaviours. Therefore, care would need to be taken to ensure 
candidates exhibited the required values and behaviours.

The most common reason why respondents were attracted to working in the sector (Figure 3), was 
because they wanted to make a difference; cited by 69% (162 individuals). Being able to make the best 
use of skills and experience was the next most common factor; mentioned by 38% (89 individuals).

Figure 3: Reasons for attraction to work in social care (%)

Respondents were asked which factors were most important to them (Figure 4), with work-life balance 
(69%), ability to make a difference (65%) and pay (61%) regarded as highly important. Therefore, ‘making 
a difference’ appears to be key to both entering and remaining in a career in social care.

  

 

07 Future Social Care Workforce Survey Findings 

Survey Findings 
Working in Social Care  

• The most frequently cited sectors that respondents had worked in prior 
to social care were ‘retail and sales’ and ‘education’ – possible 
employment sectors to target with future recruitment campaigns. 

• Wanting to ‘make a difference’ was the most common reason why 
participants were attracted to working in the sector and remained one 
of the most important factors once working in the sector. 

 

Almost half (49%) of respondents working in social care had always worked in 
the sector.  For those that had worked elsewhere, ‘retail and sales’ was the 
most popular sector to have worked in previously (30 respondents) followed by 
‘education’ (12 respondents). Whilst this may provide employment sectors to 
focus on, focus group attendees and national research highlights the 
importance of getting the ‘right’ candidates with the necessary values and 
behaviours.  Therefore, care would need to be taken to ensure candidates 
exhibited the required values and behaviours. 

The most common reason why respondents were attracted to working in the 
sector (Figure 3), was because they wanted to make a difference; cited by 
69% (162 individuals). Being able to make the best use of skills and 
experience was the next most common factor; mentioned by 38% (89 
individuals).  

Figure 3: Reasons for attraction to work in social care (%) 

 

Respondents were asked which factors were most important to them (Figure 
4), with work-life balance (69%), ability to make a difference (65%) and pay 
(61%) regarded as highly important.  Therefore, ‘making a difference’ appears 
to be key to both entering and remaining in a career in social care.  

Page 43



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 8

Engagement Summary Report

Figure 4: Most important factors to survey respondents (%)

Job Satisfaction and Advocacy

 •  Respondents reported high levels of job satisfaction and advocacy – something to be 
celebrated and built upon. 

 •  Work-life balance and pay were the areas of lowest satisfaction yet regarded as highly 
important – potential areas of focus to further increase job satisfaction and improve staff 
retention.

Overall, almost eight in 10 (78%) respondents were satisfied with their current job and over six in 10 
(62%) would recommend social care as a place to work (Figure 5).

Figure 5: Job satisfaction and advocacy of survey respondents (%)

  

 

08 Future Social Care Workforce Survey Findings 

Figure 4: Most important factors to survey respondents (%) 

 

Job Satisfaction and Advocacy 

• Respondents reported high levels of job satisfaction and advocacy – 
something to be celebrated and built upon.  

• Work-life balance and pay were the areas of lowest satisfaction yet 
regarded as highly important – potential areas of focus to further 
increase job satisfaction and improve staff retention. 

 

Overall, almost eight in 10 (78%) respondents were satisfied with their current 
job and over six in 10 (62%) would recommend social care as a place to work 
(Figure 5).  

Figure 5: Job Satisfaction and Advocacy of survey respondents (%) 

 

  

 

08 Future Social Care Workforce Survey Findings 

Figure 4: Most important factors to survey respondents (%) 

 

Job Satisfaction and Advocacy 

• Respondents reported high levels of job satisfaction and advocacy – 
something to be celebrated and built upon.  

• Work-life balance and pay were the areas of lowest satisfaction yet 
regarded as highly important – potential areas of focus to further 
increase job satisfaction and improve staff retention. 

 

Overall, almost eight in 10 (78%) respondents were satisfied with their current 
job and over six in 10 (62%) would recommend social care as a place to work 
(Figure 5).  

Figure 5: Job Satisfaction and Advocacy of survey respondents (%) 

 

Page 44



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 9

Engagement Summary Report

The aspect of their job that the greatest proportion of respondents were satisfied with was team 
working (82%) with comments about receiving; “good support from my peers…good work ethos and 
teamwork spirit”.

Many respondents were also satisfied with their physical work environment (81%) and their ability to 
make a difference (80%); “I get the pleasure of making a positive difference/contribution to the lives of 
some of the most vulnerable people in society”.

The aspects that the largest number of employees were dissatisfied with were pay (39%), work-life 
balance (27%) and workload (26%). A common theme emerging from free text comments related to 
“little pay, large amounts of responsibility, very little recognition”. This is further supported by focus 
group and national research findings about disparity with other sectors, who it was felt get the same pay 
for less responsibility.

Work-life balance and workload issues often focused on not being able to make plans due to long hours 
and having to take on extra unexpected shifts or hours due to staff shortages. This meant respondents 
sometimes felt they were unable to make personal plans and therefore had no work-life balance.

Figure 6: Respondents who reported being satisfied in their current role by 
length of service within that role (%)

Further analysis highlighted that for this survey cohort, the longer people had worked in their existing 
role, the less satisfied they appeared to be (Figure 6). Also, the factors that respondents were generally 
dissatisfied with; workload, work-life balance and pay, were the same issues regardless of their length of 
service.

With 42% of the local adult social care workforce having worked in their existing role for three or more 
years, and the average length of service for Staffordshire County Council’s children’s social care staff 
being just over 8 years, understanding and influencing long-term satisfaction will be key to improving 
staff retention.

  

 

09 Future Social Care Workforce Survey Findings 

The aspect of their job that the greatest proportion of respondents were 
satisfied with was team working (82%) with comments about receiving; “good 
support from my peers…good work ethos and teamwork spirit”.  

Many respondents were also satisfied with their physical work environment 
(81%) and their ability to make a difference (80%); “I get the pleasure of 
making a positive difference/contribution to the lives of some of the most 
vulnerable people in society”. 

The aspects that the largest number of employees were dissatisfied with were 
pay (39%), work-life balance (27%) and workload (26%).  A common theme 
emerging from free text comments related to “little pay, large amounts of 
responsibility, very little recognition”.  This is further supported by focus group 
and national research findings about disparity with other sectors, who it was 
felt get the same pay for less responsibility. 

Work-life balance and workload issues often focused on not being able to make 
plans due to long hours and having to take on extra unexpected shifts or hours 
due to staff shortages.  This meant respondents sometimes felt they were 
unable to make personal plans and therefore had no work-life balance. 

Figure 6: % of respondents who reported being satisfied in their 
current role by length of service within that role 

 

Further analysis highlighted that for this survey cohort, the longer people had 
worked in their existing role, the less satisfied they appeared to be (Figure 6). 
Also, the factors that respondents were generally dissatisfied with; workload, 
work-life balance and pay, were the same issues regardless of their length of 
service.    

With 42% of the local adult social care workforce having worked in their 
existing role for three or more years, and the average length of service for 
Staffordshire County Council’s children’s social care staff being just over 8 
years, understanding and influencing long-term satisfaction will be key to 
improving staff retention.  

 

Page 45



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 10

Engagement Summary Report

Recruitment and Retention

 •  Recruiting staff into social care roles is reported to be more of a challenge, than retention.  
Yet difficulties are reported with both. 

 •  Satisfaction appears to be important to retaining staff, with satisfied staff reporting  
being unlikely to leave their role; therefore, looking for ways to drive up employee  
satisfaction will be key.

Almost nine in 10 (89%) responding organisations suggested they found it difficult to recruit social care 
staff and almost half (48%) suggested they found it difficult to retain staff.

Figure 7: Level of difficulty associated with recruitment and retention of 
social care staff (%)

A range of roles were cited by organisation respondents as being hard to recruit to, however, ‘care staff’ 
(16 organisations) and ‘community care/home care staff’ (six organisations) were cited more than others. 
Few organisations provided details of specific roles in which it was hard to retain staff, with numbers too 
low to draw any conclusions.

Note: The role types mentioned above should be treated with some caution, as this may be more of a 
reflection of the type of organisations responding, than true difficulty across the wider sector.

Employees considering leaving their role or the sector
Responses from individuals about the likelihood of them leaving their current role, or the sector, within 
the next 12 months, support those made by organisations about the difficulties with staff retention. Two 
in 10 (20%) respondents suggested they were likely to leave their role and just under two in 10 (19%) 
likely to leave the social care sector completely, within the next year (Figure 8).

Satisfaction appears to be important to retaining staff, with 116 (90%) of those saying they were unlikely 
to leave their role being satisfied with their current job; therefore, looking for ways to drive up employee 
satisfaction will be important.

  

 

010 Future Social Care Workforce Survey Findings 

Recruitment and Retention 

• Recruiting staff into social care roles is reported to be more of a 
challenge, than retention. Yet difficulties are reported with both.  

• Satisfaction appears to be important to retaining staff, with satisfied 
staff reporting being unlikely to leave their role; therefore, looking for 
ways to drive up employee satisfaction will be key. 

 

Almost nine in 10 (89%) responding organisations suggested they found it 
difficult to recruit social care staff and almost half (48%) suggested they found 
it difficult to retain staff.   

Figure 7: Level of difficulty associated with recruitment and retention 
of social care staff (%) 

 

A range of roles were cited by organisation respondents as being hard to 
recruit to, however, ‘care staff’ (16 organisations) and ‘community care/home 
care staff’ (six organisations) were cited more than others. Few organisations 
provided details of specific roles in which it was hard to retain staff, with 
numbers too low to draw any conclusions. 
Note: The role types mentioned above should be treated with some caution, as 
this may be more of a reflection of the type of organisations responding, than 
true difficulty across the wider sector. 

Employees considering leaving their role or the sector 

Responses from individuals about the likelihood of them leaving their current 
role, or the sector, within the next 12 months, support those made by 
organisations about the difficulties with staff retention. Two in 10 (20%) 
respondents suggested they were likely to leave their role and just under two 
in 10 (19%) likely to leave the social care sector completely, within the next 
year (Figure 8).  

Satisfaction appears to be important to retaining staff, with 116 (90%) of 
those saying they were unlikely to leave their role being satisfied with their 

Page 46



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 11

Engagement Summary Report

Figure 8: Likelihood of remaining in current role or the sector in next 12 
months (%)

Survey respondents that said they were likely to leave in the next 12 months most frequently cited pay/
financial reasons, retirement and pressure, stress and health issues as the reason. However, numbers 
likely to leave are small and do not provide a robust evidence base. Looking instead at the reasons why 
employees reported being unlikely to leave, provides a more robust set of factors that we might want to 
encourage more of to improve retention.

The top reason why respondents reported being unlikely to leave their roles was that enjoyed what they 
did (52 responses, 40%), often despite the pressure and hours; “I love my job and the amazing team 
I work with; the last 2 years have been harder than the other 18 years put together, but I saw some 
of the most amazing commitment and dedication from people that just continues to fill me with job 
satisfaction”.

The other two reasons that were mentioned most often were teamwork; having “great support from 
my team and a very supportive manager” (16 responses, 12%) and that they were settled or had been 
in the profession a long time (14 responses, 11%); “I am committed to my role and will stay here until 
retirement in 8 years times”.

The top reasons why people would be unlikely to leave the sector were very similar to the reasons why 
they would not leave their role; enjoying what they did (43 responses, 30%), rewarding work where they 
were able to make a difference (12 responses, 9%) and age/retirement meaning it was not the time to be 
starting in a new sector (11 responses, 8%).

  

 

011 Future Social Care Workforce Survey Findings 

current job; therefore, looking for ways to drive up employee satisfaction will 
be important.  

Figure 8: Likelihood of remaining in current role or the sector in next 
12 months (%) 

 

Survey respondents that said they were likely to leave in the next 12 months 
most frequently cited pay/financial reasons, retirement and pressure, stress 
and health issues as the reason.  However, numbers likely to leave are small 
and do not provide a robust evidence base.  Looking instead at the reasons 
why employees reported being unlikely to leave, provides a more robust set of 
factors that we might want to encourage more of to improve retention. 

The top reason why respondents reported being unlikely to leave their roles 
was that enjoyed what they did (52 responses, 40%), often despite the 
pressure and hours; “I love my job and the amazing team I work with; the last 
2 years have been harder than the other 18 years put together, but I saw 
some of the most amazing commitment and dedication from people that just 
continues to fill me with job satisfaction”. 

The other two reasons that were mentioned most often were teamwork; 
having “great support from my team and a very supportive manager” (16 
responses, 12%) and that they were settled or had been in the profession a 
long time (14 responses, 11%); “I am committed to my role and will stay here 
until retirement in 8 years times”. 

The top reasons why people would be unlikely to leave the sector were very 
similar to the reasons why they would not leave their role; enjoying what they 
did (43 responses, 30%), rewarding work where they were able to make a 
difference (12 responses, 9 %) and age/retirement meaning it was not the 
time to be starting in a new sector (11 responses, 8%).   

 

 

 

Page 47



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 12

Engagement Summary Report

Recruitment and Retention Challenges and Opportunities

 •  Challenges and opportunities to attracting and retaining staff were fairly similar; with the 
biggest challenge for both being pay - one of the main reasons for job dissatisfaction too. 

 •  Unsurprisingly over two thirds of respondents (69%) mentioned better pay and benefits  
as a way to improve working in the sector; with the next most common suggestions only  
being mentioned by 17% of respondents; improved payments for expenses, better  
training and progression opportunities and improving the imagine of the sector.

Survey participants were asked what they thought the main barriers or challenges to attracting 
and retaining staff in social care were. Pay came out as the biggest challenge by a notable margin; 
highlighted by 75% of respondents (Figure 9). Individuals also cited the two, possibly linked, issues of 
working hours or patterns (45%) and work-life balance (41%) as the next biggest barriers.

Figure 9: Challenges to attracting and retaining staff (%)

  

 

012 Future Social Care Workforce Survey Findings 

Recruitment and Retention Challenges and Opportunities  

• Challenges and opportunities to attracting and retaining staff were 
fairly similar; with the biggest challenge for both being pay - one of the 
main reasons for job dissatisfaction too. 

• Unsurprisingly over two thirds of respondents (69%) mentioned better 
pay and benefits as a way to improve working in the sector; with the 
next most common suggestions only being mentioned by 17% of 
respondents; improved payments for expenses, better training and 
progression opportunities and improving the imagine of the sector. 

 

Survey participants were asked what they thought the main barriers or 
challenges to attracting and retaining staff in social care were.  Pay came out 
as the biggest challenge by a notable margin; highlighted by 75% of 
respondents (Figure 9). Individuals also cited the two, possibly linked, issues 
of working hours or patterns (45%) and work-life balance (41%) as the next 
biggest barriers. 

Figure 9: Challenges to attracting and retaining staff (%) 

 

Page 48



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 13

Engagement Summary Report

Responding organisations also thought the biggest challenge for recruitment was pay (79% or 48 
organisations), followed by travel costs (54% or 33 organisations).

Responding employees were asked to expand on their answers, providing suggestions for how to 
improve working in the sector or encourage more entrants, with 173 (72%) providing additional 
comments.

These ‘free text’ comments were analysed and categorised into several themes with Figure 10 showing 
the top four themes and the percentage of respondents that mentioned them. Perhaps unsurprisingly 
the top suggestions were closely linked to tackling some of the main barriers cited.

Figure 10: Top four things that would improve working in social care or 
encourage more people to join the sector (%)

Several comments around pay were linked to creating parity with NHS staff; a theme also arising in the 
focus groups and national research. However, there was an understanding that increasing rates of pay 
would be difficult. Another reoccurring theme around the issue of pay was the difficulties associated with 
the cost-of-living increase and the increasing cost of work-related travel and that pay was not keeping 
pace.

Retention challenges were similar to those for recruitment, but public perception was not seen as such 
a challenge once staff were working in the sector, with work-life balance becoming the third biggest 
challenge instead.

  

 

013 Future Social Care Workforce Survey Findings 

Responding organisations also thought the biggest challenge for recruitment 
was pay (79% or 48 organisations), followed by travel costs (54% or 33 
organisations).   

Responding employees were asked to expand on their answers, providing 
suggestions for how to improve working in the sector or encourage more 
entrants, with 173 (72%) providing additional comments. 

These ‘free text’ comments were analysed and categorised into several themes 
with Figure 10 showing the top four themes and the percentage of respondents 
that mentioned them. Perhaps unsurprisingly the top suggestions were closely 
linked to tackling some of the main barriers cited. 

Figure 10: Top four things that would improve working in social care 
or encourage more people to join the sector (%) 

 

Several comments around pay were linked to creating parity with NHS staff; a 
theme also arising in the focus groups and national research.  However, there 
was an understanding that increasing rates of pay would be difficult.  Another 
reoccurring theme around the issue of pay was the difficulties associated with 
the cost-of-living increase and the increasing cost of work-related travel and 
that pay was not keeping pace.  

Retention challenges were similar to those for recruitment, but public 
perception was not seen as such a challenge once staff were working in the 
sector, with work-life balance becoming the third biggest challenge instead. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 14

Engagement Summary Report

Support for Recruitment and Retention

 •  Being able to offer better rates of pay, was seen by responding organisations, as the  
most useful support to aid them with recruitment and retention. 

 •  Transport related expenses also provided an opportunity to make the sector more  
attractive, as well as improving the general image of the sector to help make workers  
feel more valued. 

 •  Organisations also suggested that support with the actual recruitment process itself  
would be helpful.

Organisations suggested the most helpful form of support to aid recruitment would be being able to 
offer better pay and conditions (25 organisations). However, support with the actual recruitment process 
was also mentioned by 11 responding organisations and nine mentioned that being able to offer support 
with transport costs would help.

Suggestions around helpful recruitment process support included help with where to advertise, more 
free advertising, support with the promotion of the social care sector and creation of a better public 
image, more jobs fairs/events and financial assistance with recruitment and marketing.

Being able to make staff feel more valued and to offer recognition and rewards were also thought of as 
possible initiatives.

Past Recruitment and Retention Initiatives

 •  The most common areas where responding organisations had tried some successful  
initiatives in support of recruitment and retention were pay, making staff feel more  
valued and support with transport costs. These initiatives could be learned from and  
further developed. 

 •  Not all initiatives were costly; just saying thank you and running schemes such as  
employee of the month have made staff feel more valued in local organisations and  
have aided with retention.

Out of the 62 responding organisations, 35 (56%) provided details of initiatives their organisation had 
tried which they felt had made a positive impact on the recruitment or retention of staff.

The top three areas where organisations had tried some successful initiatives were pay, making staff feel 
more valued and transport costs. These initiatives could be learned from and further developed for use 
across the county.

Page 50



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 15

Engagement Summary Report

 •  14 organisations mentioned initiatives around pay with themes including increasing rates of pay, 
uplifts for hard to fill vacancies and regularly reviewing pay.

 •  10 organisations mentioned ways in which they had made staff feel more valued, and these 
were not always expensive. For example, saying thank you and initiatives such as employee 
of the month. There was also a theme of little treats for staff for example ice creams, the 
occasional packed lunch, little thank you parcels and also just a little bit of time and maybe a 
drink (tea/coffee) if they had been involved in a difficult appointment.

 •  Nine organisations mentioned initiatives around transport, these were quite varied but included 
things like: paid travel time, paid MOTs, allowances towards motor insurance, fuel allowances 
and mileage rate increases.

Other suggestions with five or more responses; introducing bonuses (6 responses), providing incentives 
(6 responses), and improving or creating training and career pathways (5 responses).

Prospective Employees

The engagement programme also sought to gain the views of the prospective workforce in order to 
understand any barriers they saw to entering the sector, and understand more about where they looked 
for jobs and what social care roles they might be interested in.

The prospective workforce was seen as a broad group of individuals including young people in schools 
and colleges, people returning to work after breaks in their career, as well as those already working in 
different sectors who might want to work in the social care sector instead.

Just 22 individuals looking to enter a career in social care responded to the survey, with numbers 
therefore being too small to draw any firm conclusions. In addition, approximately 20 young people took 
part in focused discussions to supplement these responses.

In those that responded, there did appear to be a preference for working in children’s social care over 
adults and again being attracted to social care as they felt it meant they would be able to make a 
difference.

Careers websites, the County Council website and University websites were suggested as the most 
common place to look for information about social care careers in Staffordshire.

Page 51



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 16

Engagement Summary Report

Appendix 1 – Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Focus Group Themes

Face-to-face focus group sessions were held as part of the wider engagement programme, with 
approximately 70 participants.

The findings support those from the two surveys, with similar key themes:
 •  Staff saw social care as a profession which, whilst increasingly challenging, could be incredibly 

rewarding – although they did not always feel valued.
 •  Work in social care was not always seen as being a profession equal to NHS care or seen as a 

long-term career prospect.
 •  Due to the complexity and strain of the work, it was felt that there was a need to ensure that 

there was always good peer support and access to support for staff wellbeing.
 •  Levels of pay present a considerable challenge and are not seen as competitive, with other 

sectors offering comparable pay and conditions, with less responsibility.
 •  Ensuring that there is a long-term view for training and development, and rewarding staff for 

development and progression, could help with retention, and also help improve the view of 
social care as a long-term professional career choice.

Working in the care sector

There was a consensus that roles had evolved over time and that work in the sector had become more 
complex. Despite this, many still had the drive and passion to continue. Groups discussed the sense of 
reward from supporting others, which fits with the level of importance given to being able to ‘make a 
difference’ in the survey responses.

Some younger people held the view that the reward for social work was quite limited, so this might be a 
challenge when looking towards the long-term future workforce.

Perception of the care sector

There was a view that care within the social care sector was not viewed as equal to care provided in NHS 
settings, particularly that nursing in the care sector was not deemed comparable to nursing within the 
NHS.

Some suggested that nursing degrees should include placements in care settings as a requirement, to 
challenge and change this perception.

Linked to recruitment, focus groups discussed that job centres sometimes promoted care roles as a ‘stop 
gap’ whilst people looked for other jobs, and not as a serious profession or career choice. Due to the 
high number of vacancies, it was felt that sometimes the job centres encouraged people to apply for 
‘application practice’ who were not appropriate for caring roles – which appeared to further de-value the 
role.

Page 52



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 17

Engagement Summary Report

Recruitment

There was a shared view, that roles in the care sector were not often viewed as being professional roles. 
This view is underpinned by low levels of pay, and a perception that roles do not present a serious long-
term career option with progression.

The level of competition at a similar pay level is also seen as a challenge, with individuals able to find 
jobs with comparable pay, but far less responsibility and complexity in other sectors.

There was a feeling amongst some that within nursing, the NHS was the first choice for many, and it was 
hard to compete. Similarly, there was a feeling that agencies were also a preferred choice, as they could 
offer better pay and flexibility.

One focus group raised challenges with the timeframe for completing vetting processes before new staff 
could start – with a comment that sometimes, applicants would secure work elsewhere because the DBS 
clearing process was taking so long.

Retention and resilience

In terms of retention and resilience, it was suggested that there was a need for good support for mental 
health and well-being, and a need to build strong team dynamics with effective peer support. There was 
some suggestion that this could achieved through good reflective practice.

Good resilience and good retention seem to occur where staff knew that they were valued. Several 
felt that there was value in focusing on ongoing development, and rewarding development well – e.g. 
increasing pay in line with additional training or qualifications completed. One focus group mentioned 
the use of retention rewards for continued service.

There was also widespread concern that retention was made difficult because wages are often not very 
competitive.

Particularly amongst managers, there was a feeling that there was a considerable amount of bureaucracy 
but very little peer support across settings.

Page 53



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 18

Engagement Summary Report

Development and training

Some felt that regular mandatory training refreshers were demotivating for staff, particularly when 
training related to things that staff already did well and had done for some time.

Training and development often related to skills needed in the ‘here and now’ and did not have a long-
term view. To build resilience, motivate and retain staff, there was a feeling that there must be a view on 
longer-term development and upskilling. This longer-term view should also consider succession planning; 
understanding that skilled staff may move on, but this should not leave settings in a skills deficit.

Some felt there was a need for staff to undertake more non-care related training, including improving 
digital skills, and in some cases improving administration and back-office skills, so that managers were 
able to delegate appropriately.

Additionally, there was a sense that train the trainer courses may be beneficial, so that upskilling could 
happen flexibly and internally. This would also boost the confidence and value of skilled staff providing 
the training.

Page 54



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 19

Engagement Summary Report

Appendix 2 – National Research Review

Three papers have been incorporated into this review, with the second paper itself being a review of 
over 190 pieces of relevant literature:

 1. A People Plan for Social Care (2021, Institute of Health and Social Care Management)
 2. Evidence Review and Sector Consultation (2021, Skills for Care)
 3. Recruitment and Retention: Secrets of Success (2017, Skills for Care)

The key findings support the findings from our local engagement, with the following main themes:

 •  Careful and considered recruitment is important; ensuring the right values and behaviours are 
found – skills can be taught more easily.

 •  There needs to be honesty in recruitment about the reality of the job, so people know what to 
expect, to improve retention.

 •  Recruitment campaigns need to go further to address negative perceptions of working in the 
sector and to try and see a career in social care as equal to one in the NHS.

 •  Challenges exist around pay and responsibility, with disparity with other sectors. Comparative 
rates of pay would potentially help staff feel valued.

 •  Learning and development needs to interest the individual, with plans to help them see their 
potential future progression.

 •  Mental health and wellbeing support is key; ensuring that staff are mentally healthy for work 
goes hand-in-hand with a positive workplace culture, with links to better retention and quality 
of care.

Attracting and recruiting staff

Building a strong reputation for being a good employer, with existing staff spreading that message, may 
encourage applications for vacancies.

Values-based approaches to recruitment can carry a lot of merit. Finding staff with the right values and 
behaviours can be more important than finding staff who are already experienced and qualified; skills can 
be taught but personal attributes (kindness, compassion, reliability, honesty, etc.) cannot.

Smaller providers can struggle to recruit because they cannot afford to invest in recruitment campaigns. 
National recruitment and sector promotion campaigns, which could benefit smaller providers, are 
sometimes disjointed, and do not have a coordinated strategy – so are not always successful.
There is a feeling that recruitment campaigns do not go far enough to tackle and address negative 
public perceptions of the sector.

Background checks, including DBS clearance can be a lengthy process. In some instances, candidates 
have decided to secure alternative employment rather than continue to wait.

Page 55



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 20

Engagement Summary Report

Job satisfaction

Developing a positive culture, where staff are supported and valued and have opportunities to enhance 
their skills and knowledge, reinforces the message that working in adult social care is a good career 
choice.

There is a possible case to be made for recognising the competency of individuals, to avoid them having 
to repeat the same mandatory training year-on-year. This would also show recognition of staff skill.

Pay and reward

Employers with lower turnover recognised the value in offering pay above the National Living Wage, 
or at least above the local minimum. Paying competitively helps ensure that staff feel valued and fairly 
compensated for the work that they do, which can have a positive impact on retention rates.

There is some feeling that pay does not reflect the level of responsibility an individual in social care had, 
when compared to similar levels of responsibility within the NHS. A further report (Unfair for Care, 2021) 
suggested that many social care professionals would receive 39% higher pay in roles with the same 
skillset and responsibility in publicly funded roles.

This links with national concerns about retention, where staff can find roles in other industries with similar 
levels of pay, but with lower levels of personal responsibility.

Challenges with pay are caused by a range of factors: recruitment difficulties can result in the use of 
expensive agency staff – which require more money from wage budgets than directly employed staff; 
levels of local authority funding are constrained by national settlements, and commissioners must work 
within the available budgets and select the most cost effective providers – the result is that income for 
those with local authority contracts is essentially capped. Equally some providers are in the sector as 
a profitable industry choice, and similarly to other industries, limit distribution of funds back into the 
workforce.

There is a view that increasing pay alone, is not the answer; increases in pay and benefits must come with 
skills and experience, and demonstratable quality improvements and performance.

Workforce development

Where development tends to dovetail best with retention, is in identifying learning and development 
needs which are of personal interest to the individual, as well as being important to their development.

It appears essential to use a range of approaches to identify development opportunities, including 
inductions, structured supervision, performance and development plans, and reflections on practice 
(both individually and as a group).

Page 56



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 21

Engagement Summary Report

Working with individuals to create personal development and career plans can help with staff retention, 
particularly around being able to see their own potential progression within the sector. There is a view 
that there should also be a greater focus on developing leadership skills.

Using eLearning courses as the sole approach to training and development can be detrimental; it can 
feel less professional than face-to-face sessions and provide less opportunity for peer-to-peer reflection. 
There is some concern that eLearning does not become embedded, and that a blended approach is 
more effective.

As well as formal training, employers with lower staff turnover talked about the success of using 
opportunities for informal training and knowledge transfer; using mentoring and buddying, as well as 
group knowledge sharing sessions and exercises.

It was reflected that there are often funding streams available to develop staff, and that effort should be 
made to best identify these and seek out opportunities for staff.

Working hours and patterns

There is value in being as flexible as possible when setting working hours; different shift patterns suit 
different types of workers, and the indication is that employers who can accommodate this are rewarded 
with more loyal staff.

Public perception of the sector

At a national level, the sector itself recognises a serious challenge around public perception and 
portrayal of social care; which affects both the ability to attract staff, and how existing staff feel about 
remaining in the sector.

The public image of social care can be demotivating for staff, ultimately, there is a feeling that more 
needs to be done to change the negative perception the public holds of social care and this will only be 
achieved if popular culture references, news and media and political perceptions also change.

Publicity activity focusing on the NHS, while vital, is believed to have inadvertently diluted the 
importance of the wider care sector, and further perpetuated the idea that the care sector is held 
in lower regard than the health sector. There is a feeling that this has been exacerbated by the slow 
integration of health and social care.

There is a feeling that while “good news” stories from within the health sector tend to reach the press, 
those from the care sector do not.

Due to the low levels of pay, there is a perception that those employed in the sector are unskilled and 
see work in the social care sector as a “stepping-stone” to another job or sector, with no long-term 
intention to stay in social care.

Page 57



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy 22

Engagement Summary Report

Retaining staff

At a national level, the same challenges (perception of the sector, pay, progression) which affect the 
ability to recruit, also affect the ability to retain staff once in the workforce.

For new recruits, the volume and frequency of “tick box” mandatory training can be off-putting, with a 
view amongst some providers that some mandatory training courses do not provide staff with the actual 
skills they need.

It is important to be honest about the realities of the job, this appears to help ensure you get the right 
applicants and ensure that the people you employ are a good match with the ethos and values of social 
care.

Respecting and valuing staff, investing in learning and development, embedding the organisation’s 
values, and celebrating achievements all go a long way to improving staff retention.

Considering the mental health and wellbeing of staff in and outside of work is important. Ensuring staff 
are mentally fit for work goes hand in hand with creating a positive workplace culture, has links to better 
retention, and quality of care.

Measuring staff satisfaction can be useful in identifying ways to further develop the culture of the 
organisation, but whether this is done formally or informally, the crucial part is to be seen to listen and 
act upon what staff tell you.

Page 58



Staffordshire
Social Care 
Workforce 

Page 59





 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community Impact Assessment 
Future Social Care Workforce Strategy 

Author: Andrew Jepps 

 
Date: 08.12.22 

 

P
age 61



Community Impact Assessment      1 
 

 Equality Assessment  

Protected Characteristics Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

Age - older and younger people 

Activities identified 

within the strategy will 

support recruitment and 

retention in the social 

care work sector across 

all age ranges, with an 

emphasis on supporting 

younger people. 

The strategy is part of 

the joint approach to 

developing the 

Staffordshire social care 

workforce across the 

Integrated Care System, 

supporting inclusion. It 

aligns with the 

Leadership for a 

Collaborative and 

Inclusive Future Report, 

recognising the real 

difference that good 

leadership can make in 

health and social care 

and the need for 

None identified  

P
age 62



Community Impact Assessment      2 
 

Protected Characteristics Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

positive equality, 

diversity and inclusion 

action. 

Disability - people who are living with different 

conditions and disabilities, such as: mental 
illnesses, long term conditions, Autism and other 
neurodiverse conditions, learning disabilities, 

sensory impairment and physical disabilities. 

The strategy is part of 

the joint approach to 

developing the 

Staffordshire social care 

workforce across the 

Integrated Care System, 

supporting inclusion. It 

aligns with the 

Leadership for a 

Collaborative and 

Inclusive Future Report, 

recognising the real 

difference that good 

leadership can make in 

health and social care 

and the need for 

positive equality, 

diversity and inclusion 

action.  

None identified  

Gender reassignment - those people in the 

process of transitioning from one sex to another 

Marriage & Civil Partnership - people who are 

married or in a civil partnership should not be 
treated differently at work 

Pregnancy & Maternity - women who are 

pregnant or who have recently had a baby, 
including breast feeding mothers 

Race - people defined by their race, colour, and 

nationality (including citizenship) ethnic or 

national origins 

Religion or Belief - people with any religious or 

philosophical belief, including a lack of belief.  A 

belief should affect a person’s life choices or the 
way they live for it to be considered 

Sex - men or women 

P
age 63



Community Impact Assessment      3 
 

Protected Characteristics Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

Sexual orientation - whether a person's sexual 

attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite 
sex or to both sexes 

 

 Workforce Assessment 

Who will be affected – consider the following 

protected characteristics: age, disability, gender 

reassignment, marriage & civil partnership, 

pregnancy & maternity, race, religion or belief, 

sex and sexual orientation 

Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

All social care workers within Health and Care 

and Children’s and Families Directorates The strategy aims to 

develop a more resilient 

care sector that enables 

more effective 

recruitment and 

retention in adult’s and 

children’s social care, 

based on person-

centred and innovative 

ways of working. 

Activities arising from 

the strategy aim to 

improve the recognition 

and rewards for those 

None identified 
 

P
age 64



Community Impact Assessment      4 
 

Who will be affected – consider the following 

protected characteristics: age, disability, gender 

reassignment, marriage & civil partnership, 

pregnancy & maternity, race, religion or belief, 

sex and sexual orientation 

Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

working within social 

care.  

 

 Health and Care Assessment 

Key considerations Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

Residents’ health and wellbeing 

 

 

Personal responsibility and independence 

 

The strategy and key 

activities support a more 

resilient care sector. 

The strategy and 

activities promote 

personal responsibility 

and independence 

through person-centred 

and innovative ways of 

working. 

 

None identified 

 

 

None identified 

 

P
age 65



Community Impact Assessment      5 
 

 

 Communities Assessment 

 

Key consideration Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

Community capacity 
The strategy and 

activities promote 

personal responsibility 

and independence in 

those receiving care, 

through person-centred 

and innovative ways of 

working. This will 

provide opportunities for 

stronger links between 

communities and the 

social care workforce. 

 

None identified 
 

 Economic Assessment 

Key consideration Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

Impact economic growth, promote 

Staffordshire as a ‘go to’ location for new 
The strategy aims to 

develop a more resilient 

None identified   

P
age 66



Community Impact Assessment      6 
 

Key consideration Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

businesses to invest and start up and existing 
businesses to grow. 

 
Impact upon resident’s income and access to 
good quality jobs. 

 
Allow residents to improve, diversify and 

adapt their skills and qualifications. 
 

care sector that enables 

more effective 

recruitment and 

retention in adults’ and 

children’s social 

services, based on 

person-centred and 

innovative ways of 

working - for all social 

care workers including 

those in regulated 

professions across the 

public and independent 

sector, attracting people 

at every stage of their 

working lives, including 

those at the start of their 

career.  

We will help shape the 

future of social care in 

Staffordshire through:  

Working collaboratively 

to support each 

employer to be the best 

that they can in 

recruiting, retaining and 

P
age 67



Community Impact Assessment      7 
 

Key consideration Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

developing their own 

teams; Working in 

partnership to carry out 

targeted local 

recruitment campaigns, 

promote the sector in 

schools and with 

potential job applicants, 

build a consistent and 

coordinated local skills 

offer, and promote the 

value of the social care 

sector ; Jointly making 

the case for fair and 

sustainable funding to 

the social care sector 

 

 Climate Change Assessment  

Key considerations Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

There are no direct climate change 

implications arising as a result of this report, 

and climate change was considered during 

identification of potential activities to include 

within the strategy. One of the workstreams 

   

P
age 68



Community Impact Assessment      8 
 

Key considerations Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

will seek to reduce transport costs across the 

partnership and climate change impact is 

being considered here. It will also be 

considered within all the future activities 

arising from implementation of the strategy.  

 

 

 Environment Assessment  

Key considerations Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

Ability to travel/access to transport One of the key actions 

within the strategy is to 

seek to reduce travel 

costs where possible 

across the partnership. 

We will do this by 

exploring the potential to 

subsidise/support 

transport costs; 

encourage lifestyle 

benefits providers and 

other agencies to offer 

deals relating to 

transport costs; and 

None identified  

P
age 69



Community Impact Assessment      9 
 

Key considerations Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

promote collaborative 

working between 

partners to reduce 

unnecessary journeys 

where possible and 

appropriate. These 

activities will all enhance 

the ability for the 

workforce to 

travel/access transport. 

 

  

P
age 70



 

 
Local Members Interest 

 N/A 

 
Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
Monday 20 March 2023 

 

Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent ICB update on 
2023/24 Operational Plan 
 
Recommendation(s)  
 

I recommend that: 
 

a. The Committee note Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Integrated Care 
Board’s approach and current position in the development of the 

2023/24 Operational Plan as set out by NHS England in the 2023/24 
priorities and operational planning guidance. 

 
Report of the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent ICB 
 

Summary 
 
1. The Committee in being asked to note the contents of Appendix 1 which 

provides an outline of the approach and progress to date in developing 

the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent ICB 2023/24 Operational Plan. 
    

Report 
 

Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent ICB update on 2023/24 
Operational Plan  

 
2. See Appendix 1 (Operational Plan 2023/24) which sets out the approach 

and progress to date in developing the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
ICB 2023/24 Operational Plan in terms of: 

 
a. Context and approach 
b. Update on the System Integrated Planning Session 

c. The system plans for 2023/24 on a page 
d. Context for the approach suggested 

e. Overview of the draft NHS England facing submissions 
f. Recovery ambitions key messages 

 
 

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 5



 

Link to Strategic Plan  

 
3. On 1 July 2022, Integrated Care Boards (ICBs) replaced clinical 

commissioning groups (CCGs), becoming the statutory organisations 
that bring the NHS together locally to improve population health and 

establish shared strategic priorities within the NHS, connecting to 
partnerships across the Integrated Care System (ICS).  

  

4. Working with partners in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent, the ICB have 
agreed on an ambitious vision which is ‘working with you to make 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent the healthiest place to live and work.’  

 
5. The Operational Plan 2023/23 is aligned to national and local ambitions 

and delivery of the priorities, and outcomes of the Staffordshire and 
Stoke-on-Trent ICB.  

 
Link to Other Overview and Scrutiny Activity 

 
N/A 

 
Community Impact 

 
N/A 

 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 

1. Operational Plan 2023/24 

2. 2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 
 

Contact Details 
 

Paul Brown, Chief Finance Officer, Staffordshire and Stoke-on-
Trent Integrated Care Board 

 
Report Author:   Vicki Inch 

Job Title:    Associate Director of Planning and Intelligence 
Telephone No.:   07713 354252 

E-Mail Address:  vicki.inch@staffsstoke.icb.nhs.uk 

Page 72

mailto:vicki.inch@staffsstoke.icb.nhs.uk


Operational Plan 2023/24
Update for Staffordshire Overview and Scrutiny Committee
20th March 2023
Paul Brown, Chief Finance Officer (Executive Lead for Operational Planning)

P
age 73



Introduction

Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Integrated Care Board 2

The system is required to agree three planning documents, all due to be published at about the 
same time:

• A plan for the financial year 2023/24 (reflecting local and national priorities)

• A five year ‘Joint Forward Plan’

• A Strategy

Our aim is to agree all three of these plans through consensus across the system. Inevitably the 
requirements of NHS England tend to focus on the perceived health priorities, but we are keen to 
ensure that our plans resonate across the system and reflect the wider objectives that we share 
locally. We have sought to build these plans through this collective endeavour, so that the 
Integrated Care System plan is fully reflective of the plans of Local Authorities and NHS Trusts. 

This paper therefore describes a summary of our plans for 2023/24. 

The approach was developed and discussed at an event on 13th February 2023 when CEOs and 
System Leaders from across the ICS came together to set the strategic direction for the 2023/24 
planning round and agree organisational and individual contributions to that. 

P
age 74



System Integrated Planning Session

Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Integrated Care Board 3

At the event on 13th February there was a huge amount of agreement, and the sense was that the leadership 
shared a similar vision for the year ahead. Some of the common themes from the presentations which impact 
across all system partners and professional groups were: 

• Workforce – retention, well-being, culture and innovative use of workforce. 

• Seamless interfaces between organisations and teams 

• A singular plan for urgent care – from primary care through to discharge 

• Challenges presented by the finite supply of social care and the need to use this for maximum benefit 

• A high priority focus on children and ensuring a healthy transition to adulthood 

• Continuity of care in the management of long-term conditions 

• Parity between mental and physical health and between primary and secondary care provision 

• Delivering the required investment into the key priorities of workforce, digital and estate to design and 
deliver care fit for the 21st Century 

The session discussed a way of connecting services and portfolios through a system approach to prioritisation. 
This approach, and some more detail on the planning process, are shown in the following slides.

P
age 75



The system plan for 2023/24 on a page
As a system we serve the 1.2 million people who live in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent. We have a 
collective aim to improve health outcomes and provide the best health and social care services  for our 
population. Our key metric for 2023/24 reflects our ambition to provide better and more compassionate 
care in the community and avoid hospital admissions where possible for elderly and frail people, especially 
at the end of life. This is to reduce the number of Category 2 and 3 Ambulance calls. This will also 
reduce ambulance call wait times and hospital bed occupancy. We chose this metric because all parts of 
the system can contribute to reducing the number of people calling an ambulance, for example GPs, 
community NHS services, the voluntary sector, and acute trusts through the way they manage people 
whilst in hospital and avoid readmission. 

4

One 
collective 

aim

4 priorities
Urgent and emergency care

Tackling backlogs
General practice

Complex individuals

31 national objectives + 50 national 
actions

Plans to deliver the national targets, plus 
local targets from the portfolios

Collective Effort
7 portfolios,  3 in-system Trusts, 2 partner Trusts, 

2 Local Authorities, 2 Places, 1 Provider 
Collaborative and VCSE Alliance, underpinned 

by PHM, engaging the People’s Assembly 

We provide a wide range of important services to our population. In 2023/24 we will bring these together 
to address four priorities:
• Urgent and emergency care: with a focus on 

prevention ad avoiding hospital admissions, as well 
as improving management of people in hospital and 
facilitating appropriate and timely discharge.

• Backlogs: reducing queues and wait times for 
elective care, cancer, mental health, learning 
disability and autism services, and NHS dentistry; 
reducing variation and ensuring equity of access for 
our whole population.  

• General practice: ensuring that residents have 
appropriate, timely and equitable access to 
services. Ensuring that general practice is 
contributing to our collective aim through holistic 
management of elderly and frail people. 

• Complex individuals: improving access to high 
quality and cost effective care for people with 
complex needs who require multi-agency 
management. 

Includes other important tasks mandated by the NHS nationally, plus any other locally agreed targets. 
Plans will show the golden thread connecting these to the collective aim and priorities..

• Using the ‘5 Ps’ explained in the Integrated 
Care Strategy, underpinned by Population 
Health Management to drive evidence based 
decision making.

• A people plan to recruit, retain and empower 
staff

Business Plans and Project Implementation Plans for NHS Trusts and 
Portfolios will describe the actions required to implement the collective aim, 
priorities and national objectives/actions and show how these are related.

• Clinical leadership by Health and Care Senate
• Digital solutions driving transformation
• Collective ownership of the Staffordshire and 

Stoke-on-Trent pound

P
age 76



Virtual W
ardsSo

ci
al

 C
ar

e

Primary Care

Community

Context for the 
Approach Suggested

5Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Integrated Care Board

Community: 
rapid assessment / 

admission avoidance / 
discharge to improve flow

GPs and 
primary care clinicians 

support prevention (LTC 
management), 

personalised care (care 
planning) and same day 

urgent care access.

Productivity 
improvements lead to 

reduced waiting means 
fewer patients fall, 
require emergency 

care, etc 

Improve flow 
and capacity to allow rapid 
turnaround of ambulances 

to the community

Using PHM and digital 
solutions to transform 
pathway solutions and 

predict future activity and 
target limited resources, to 

reduce the number of 
patients making a 

category 2 call

The focus 
on social care, complex 
placements and CHC 

leads 
to better 

discharge

We need a target that everyone can contribute to. This will have a few effects:
• It will clearly enhance the chance of achieving that one thing
• It will lead to a greater sense of common purpose – The Janitor and JFK effect
• It will enable the development of a golden thread through the operating plan

Mental Health and LDAcute Care

Prevention

Electiv
e Care

Why avoiding patient 
harm in the community 
is the right aim to focus 
on, and why Category 
Two ambulance waits 

is suggested as 
the key metric

Providing 
alternative pathways 

means that Category 2 
patients can stay at home 

or return there quickly

More patients 
with primary diagnosis of 

Mental Health and LD 
placed on pathways that 

avoids A&E
Identifying and intervening 

to mitigate against risk 
factors at community or 

individual level to reduce 
mental health problems

P
age 77



Draft NHSE Facing Submissions
• The draft plans which support the NHSE facing submissions and templates were submitted on 23rd 

February with final submission due on 30th March.  These are as outlined in the diagram below. 

P
age 78



Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Integrated Care System 7

Recovery Ambitions Key Messages

ICB Position
� Cost Weighted Activity (103%) – 102.8%
� ERF total activity – 99.1%
ü Diagnostics activity – 115%
� 52 week wait reduce - not compliant 
� 65 weeks elimination – not compliant 
ü Diagnostics 95% within 6 weeks by March 2025  -  

compliant
ü Cancer 28 day FDS 75% - compliant (78.76%)

UHNM Position
ü Cost Weighted Activity – trust reports compliant 

103%
ü 52 weeks reduce - compliant
� 65 weeks elimination – not compliant (1,392)
ü Cancer 62 days, reduce – compliant
ü Cancer 28 day FDS 75% - compliant (79.98%)
ü A&E 4 hour minimum 76% -  compliant (76.4% in 

March 2024)
ü General & Acute Bed occupancy maximum 92%  - 

compliant (91.16%)

• NHSE facing submissions are primarily focused around recovering core services and productivity for 
activity in urgent care, planned care, cancer and diagnostics. The key messages against those are 
outlined below at ICB level and for University Hospitals of North Midlands (UHNM).

• The ICB areas of non-compliance areas are contributed to by all our main acute providers (UHNM, 
University Hospitals of Derby and Burton and Royal Wolverhampton Trust). This is the position at the 
time of the submission (23rd February) and we are working through these issues now with the aim to 
achieve compliance wherever possible:P

age 79





 
Classification: Official 

Publication approval reference: PRN00021 
 

 
2023/24 priorities and 
operational planning guidance 
 
 

Version 1.1, 27 January 2023

Page 81



 

2  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

Foreword from the NHS CEO 
 
Thank you to you, and to your teams, for your continued extraordinary efforts on 
behalf of our patients – particularly over the past weeks as we have prepared for 
and managed periods of industrial action. There is no denying it has been an 
incredibly challenging year for everyone working in the NHS, and arguably tougher 
than the first years of the pandemic. 

We have already made real progress towards many of our goals for 2022/23 – in 
particular in all but eradicating two year waits for elective care and delivering record 
numbers of urgent cancer checks. This was achieved alongside continuing to 
respond to the build-up of health needs during the pandemic, an ongoing high level 
of COVID-19 infection and capacity constraints in social care, increased costs due 
to inflation and reduced productivity due to the inevitable disruption caused by 
COVID-19.  

2023/24 will also be challenging. Our planning approach therefore reflects both our 
new ways of working, as recently articulated in the NHS Operating Framework, and 
an acknowledgement of the continuing complexity and pressure you face. 

We will support local decision making, empowering local leaders to make the best 
decisions for their local populations and have set out fewer, more focused national 
objectives. These align with our three tasks over the coming year:  

• recover our core services and productivity;  
• as we recover, make progress in delivering the key ambitions in the Long 

Term Plan (LTP), and;  
• continue transforming the NHS for the future. 

To assist you in meeting these objectives, we have set out the most critical, 
evidence-based actions that will support delivery - based on what systems and 
providers have already demonstrated makes the most difference to patient 
outcomes, experience, access, and safety. 

I look forward to continuing to work with and support you over the year ahead to 
deliver the highest possible quality of care for patients and the best possible value 
for taxpayers. 

Amanda Pritchard 

Page 82



 

3  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

Our priorities for 2023/24 
In 2023/24 we have three key tasks. Our immediate priority is to recover our core 
services and productivity. Second, as we recover, we need to make progress in 
delivering the key ambitions in the NHS Long Term Plan. Third, we need to 
continue transforming the NHS for the future. 

The table below sets out our national objectives for 2023/24. They will form the 
basis for how we assess the performance of the NHS alongside the local priorities 
set by systems. 

Recovering our core services and productivity  
To improve patient safety, outcomes and experience it is imperative that we:  

• improve ambulance response and A&E waiting times  
• reduce elective long waits and cancer backlogs, and improve performance 

against the core diagnostic standard 
• make it easier for people to access primary care services, particularly 

general practice.  

Recovering productivity and improving whole system flow are critical to achieving 
these objectives. Essential actions include: reducing ambulance handovers, bed 
occupancy and outpatient follow-ups relative to first appointments; increasing day 
case rates and theatre utilisation; moving to self-referral for many community 
services where GP intervention is not clinically necessary and increasing use of 
community pharmacies. We must also increase capacity in beds, intermediate care, 
diagnostics, ambulance services and the permanent workforce. These actions are 
supported by specific investments, including those jointly with local authorities to 
improve discharge. 

Our people are the key to delivering these objectives and our immediate collective 
challenge is to improve staff retention and attendance through a systematic focus 
on all elements of the NHS People Promise. 

As we deliver on these objectives, we must continue to narrow health inequalities in 
access, outcomes, and experience, including across services for children and 
young people. And we must maintain quality and safety in our services, particularly 
in maternity services. 

Page 83



 

4  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

The NHS has an important role in supporting the wider economy and our actions to 
support the physical and mental wellbeing of people will support more people return 
to work. 

Delivering the key NHS Long Term Plan ambitions and transforming the 
NHS 
We need to create stronger foundations for the future, with the goals of the NHS 
Long Term Plan our ‘north star’. These include our core commitments to improve 
mental health services and services for people with a learning disability and autistic 
people.  

Prevention and the effective management of long-term conditions are key to 
improving population health and curbing the ever increasing demand for healthcare 
services. NHS England will work with integrated care systems (ICSs) to support 
delivery of the primary and secondary prevention priorities set out in the NHS Long 
Term Plan. 

We need to put the workforce on a sustainable footing for the long term. NHS 
England is leading the development of a NHS Long Term Workforce Plan and 
government has committed to its publication next spring. 

The long-term sustainability of health and social care also depends on having the 
right digital foundations. NHS England will continue to work with systems to level up 
digital infrastructure and drive greater connectivity- this includes development of a 
‘digital first’ option for the public and further development of and integration with the 
NHS App to help patients identify their needs, manage their health, and get the right 
care in the right setting. 

Transformation needs to be accompanied by continuous improvement. Successful 
improvement approaches are abundant across the NHS but they are far from 
universal. NHS England will develop the national improvement offer to complement 
local work, using what we have learned from engaging with over 1,000 clinical and 
operational leaders in the summer. 

Local empowerment and accountability 
ICSs are best placed to understand population needs and are expected to agree 
specific local objectives that complement the national NHS objectives set out below. 
They should continue to pay due regard to wider NHS ambitions in determining 

Page 84



 

5  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

their local objectives – alongside place-based collaboratives. As set out in the 
recently published Operating Framework, NHS England will continue to support the 
local NHS (integrated care boards (ICBs) and providers) to deliver their objectives 
and publish information on progress against the key objectives set out in the NHS 
Long Term Plan.  

Alongside this greater local determination, greater transparency and assurance will 
strengthen accountability, drawing on the review of ICS oversight and governance 
that the Rt Hon Patricia Hewitt is leading. We welcome the review which NHS 
England has been supporting closely, and we look forward to the next stage of the 
discussions as well as the final report. NHS England will update the NHS Oversight 
Framework and work with ICBs to ensure oversight and performance management 
arrangements within their ICS area are proportionate and streamlined. 

Funding and planning assumptions 
The Autumn Statement 2022 announced an extra £3.3 bn in both 2023/24 and 
2024/25 for the NHS to respond to the significant pressures we are facing.  

NHS England is issuing two-year revenue allocations for 2023/24 and 2024/25. At 
national level, total ICB allocations including COVID-19 and Elective Recovery 
Funding (ERF) are flat in real terms with additional funding available to expand 
capacity.  

Core ICB capital allocations for 2022/23 to 2024/25 have already been published 
and remain the foundation of capital planning for future years. Capital allocations 
will be topped-up by £300 million nationally, with this funding prioritised for systems 
that deliver agreed budgets in 2022/23.  

The contract default between ICBs and providers for most planned elective care 
(ordinary, day and outpatient procedures and first appointments but not follow-ups) 
will be to pay unit prices for activity delivered. System and provider activity targets 
will be agreed through planning as part of allocating ERF on a fair shares basis to 
systems. NHS England will cover additional costs where systems exceed agreed 
activity levels.  

ICBs and NHS primary and secondary care providers are expected to work together 
to plan and deliver a balanced net system financial position in collaboration with 
other ICS partners. Further details will be set out in the revenue finance and 
contracting guidance for 2023/24. 

Page 85



 

6  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

Next steps 
ICBs are asked to work with their system partners to develop plans to meet the 
national objectives set out in this guidance and the local priorities set by systems. To 
assist them in this, the annex identifies the most critical, evidence-based actions that 
systems and NHS providers are asked to take to deliver these objectives. These are 
based on what systems and providers have already demonstrated makes the most 
difference to patient outcomes, experience, access, and safety. 

System plans should be triangulated across activity, workforce, and finance, and 
signed off by ICB and partner trust and foundation trust boards before the end of 
March 2023. NHS England will separately set out the requirements for plan 
submission. 

 

Page 86



 

7  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

National NHS objectives 2023/24 
 Area Objective 

R
ec

ov
er

in
g 

ou
r c

or
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
pr

od
uc

tiv
ity

 

Urgent and 
emergency care* 

Improve A&E waiting times so that no less than 76% of patients are seen within 4 hours by 
March 2024 with further improvement in 2024/25 
Improve category 2 ambulance response times to an average of 30 minutes across 2023/24, 
with further improvement towards pre-pandemic levels in 2024/25 
Reduce adult general and acute (G&A) bed occupancy to 92% or below 

Community 
health services 

Consistently meet or exceed the 70% 2-hour urgent community response (UCR) standard 
Reduce unnecessary GP appointments and improve patient experience by streamlining 
direct access and setting up local pathways for direct referrals 

Primary care* 

Make it easier for people to contact a GP practice, including by supporting general practice 
to ensure that everyone who needs an appointment with their GP practice gets one within 
two weeks and those who contact their practice urgently are assessed the same or next day 
according to clinical need 
Continue on the trajectory to deliver 50 million more appointments in general practice by the 
end of March 2024 
Continue to recruit 26,000 Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS) roles by the 
end of March 2024 
Recover dental activity, improving units of dental activity (UDAs) towards pre-pandemic 
levels 

Elective  
care 

Eliminate waits of over 65 weeks for elective care by March 2024 (except where patients 
choose to wait longer or in specific specialties) 
Deliver the system- specific activity target (agreed through the operational planning process) 

Cancer 

Continue to reduce the number of patients waiting over 62 days 
Meet the cancer faster diagnosis standard by March 2024 so that 75% of patients who have 
been urgently referred by their GP for suspected cancer are diagnosed or have cancer ruled 
out within 28 days 
Increase the percentage of cancers diagnosed at stages 1 and 2 in line with the 75% early 
diagnosis ambition by 2028 

Diagnostics 
Increase the percentage of patients that receive a diagnostic test within six weeks in line 
with the March 2025 ambition of 95% 
Deliver diagnostic activity levels that support plans to address elective and cancer backlogs 
and the diagnostic waiting time ambition 

Maternity* 

Make progress towards the national safety ambition to reduce stillbirth, neonatal mortality, 
maternal mortality, and serious intrapartum brain injury 

Increase fill rates against funded establishment for maternity staff 

Use of resources Deliver a balanced net system financial position for 2023/24 

LT
P 

an
d 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

Workforce 
Improve retention and staff attendance through a systematic focus on all elements of the 
NHS People Promise 

Mental health 

Improve access to mental health support for children and young people in line with the 
national ambition for 345,000 additional individuals aged 0-25 accessing NHS funded 
services (compared to 2019) 
Increase the number of adults and older adults accessing IAPT treatment  
Achieve a 5% year on year increase in the number of adults and older adults supported by 
community mental health services 
Work towards eliminating inappropriate adult acute out of area placements 
Recover the dementia diagnosis rate to 66.7% 
Improve access to perinatal mental health services 

People with a 
learning 
disability and 
autistic people 

Ensure 75% of people aged over 14 on GP learning disability registers receive an annual 
health check and health action plan by March 2024 
Reduce reliance on inpatient care, while improving the quality of inpatient care, so that by 
March 2024 no more than 30 adults with a learning disability and/or who are autistic per 
million adults and no more than 12–15 under 18s with a learning disability and/or who are 
autistic per million under 18s are cared for in an inpatient unit 

Prevention and 
health 
inequalities 

Increase percentage of patients with hypertension treated to NICE guidance to 77% by 
March 2024 
Increase the percentage of patients aged between 25 and 84 years with a CVD risk score 
greater than 20 percent on lipid lowering therapies to 60% 
Continue to address health inequalities and deliver on the Core20PLUS5 approach  

*ICBs and providers should review the UEC and general practice access recovery plans, and the single maternity 
delivery plan for further detail when published. Page 87



 

8  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

Annex 
This annex sets out the key evidence-based actions that will help deliver the 
objectives set out above and the resources being made available to support this. All 
systems are asked to develop plans to implement these. To assist systems in 
developing their plans a summary of other guidance, best practice, toolkits and 
support available from NHS England is available on the planning pages of 
FutureNHS.  

1. Recovering our core services and productivity 

1A. Urgent and emergency care (UEC) 

Key actions: 
• Increase physical capacity and permanently sustain the equivalent of the 

7,000 beds of capacity that was funded through winter 2022/23 
• Reduce the number of medically fit to discharge patients in our hospitals, 

addressing NHS causes as well as working in partnership with Local 
Authorities. 

• Increase ambulance capacity. 
• Reduce handover delays to support the management of clinical risk across 

the system in line with the November 2022 letter. 
• Maintain clinically led System Control Centres (SCCs) to effectively manage 

risk. 

In order to improve patient flow, we all agree we need to reduce bed occupancy to 
at least 92% (NHS review of winter), increase physical capacity in inpatient settlings 
to reflect changes in demographics and health demand (Projections: General and 
acute hospital beds in England (2018–2030)), as well as improve support for 
patients in the community. NHS England [working with the Department of Health 
and Social Care (DHSC) and the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities (DLUHC)] will develop a UEC recovery plan with further detail and 
this will be published in the new year. Delivery of this plan and the objectives set 
out in this guidance are supported by:  

• £1bn of funding through system allocations to increase capacity based on 
agreed system plans. NHS England anticipates that capacity will be focused 
on increasing G&A capacity, intermediate and step-down care, and 
community beds with an expectation that utilisation of virtual wards is 

Page 88

https://future.nhs.uk/nationalplanning/groupHome
https://www.gmc-uk.org/news/news-archive/winter-pressures---letter-to-the-profession
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/BW2084-system-control-centres-october-22.pdf
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fallcatsrgrey.org.uk%2Fwp%2Fdownload%2Fgovernance%2Fclinical_governance_2%2FWinter_review_annex_2.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Cengland.nhsceo%40nhs.net%7Cc4ef2ae3626b4ba1d65108dadc6c853f%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638064655882261379%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zNnDQF45L2cnco3Wi1%2BOucPsYyzsSKH%2FJGJHHFYGmC0%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.health.org.uk%2Fpublications%2Freports%2Fhow-many-beds-will-the-nhs-need-over-the-coming-decade&data=05%7C01%7Cengland.nhsceo%40nhs.net%7Cc4ef2ae3626b4ba1d65108dadc6c853f%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638064655882261379%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Ea4oFMQN1vgXYUWG%2BXAeBNm9oMpJY6yduUHIAYJpQkQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.health.org.uk%2Fpublications%2Freports%2Fhow-many-beds-will-the-nhs-need-over-the-coming-decade&data=05%7C01%7Cengland.nhsceo%40nhs.net%7Cc4ef2ae3626b4ba1d65108dadc6c853f%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638064655882261379%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Ea4oFMQN1vgXYUWG%2BXAeBNm9oMpJY6yduUHIAYJpQkQ%3D&reserved=0


 

9  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

increased towards 80% by the end of September 2023. NHS England will 
continue share best practice across a range of conditions to support this. 

• £600m provided equally through NHS England and Local Authorities and 
made available through the Better Care Fund in 2023/34 (and £1bn in 
2024/25) to support timely discharge. In addition, a £400m ring-fenced local 
authority grant for adult social care will support discharge among other goals. 
Further detail will be set out in the revenue finance and contracting guidance 
for 2023/24. 

• An increase in allocations for systems that host ambulance services to 
increase ambulance capacity. 

1B. Community health services 

Key actions: 
• Increase referrals into urgent community response (UCR) from all key 

routes, with a focus on maximising referrals from 111 and 999, and creating 
a single point of access where not already in place 

• Expand direct access and self-referral where GP involvement is not clinically 
necessary. By September 2023, systems are asked to put in place: 

o direct referral pathways from community optometrists to 
ophthalmology services for all urgent and elective eye consultations 

o self-referral routes to falls response services, musculoskeletal 
services, audiology-including hearing aid provision, weight 
management services, community podiatry, and wheelchair and 
community equipment services. 

Expanding direct access and self-referrals empowers patients to take control of 
their healthcare, streamlines access to services and reduces unnecessary burden 
on GP appointments. 

NHS England will allocate core funding growth for community health services as part 
of the overall ICB allocation growth, with £77m of Service Development Funding 
maintained in 2023/24. 

1C. Primary care 

Key actions: 
• Ensure people can more easily contact their GP practice (by phone, NHS 

App, NHS111 or online). 

Page 89



 

10  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

• Transfer lower acuity care away from both general practice and NHS 111 by 
increasing pharmacy participation in the Community Pharmacist Consultation 
Service. 

NHS England will publish the General Practice Access Recovery Plan in the new 
year which will provide details of the actions needed to achieve the goals above. In 
addition, once the 2023/24 contract negotiations have concluded, we will also 
publish the themes we are looking to engage with the profession on that could take 
a significant step towards making general practice more attractive and sustainable 
and able to deliver the vision outlined in the Fuller Stocktake, including prioritising 
continuity of care for those who need it. The output from this engagement will then 
inform the negotiations for the 2024/25 contract.  

Delivery of this plan and the objectives set out in this guidance are supported by 
funding for general practice as part of the five year GP contract, including funding 
for 26,000 additional primary care staff through the Additional Roles 
Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS). ICB primary medical allocations are being 
uplifted by 5.6% to reflect the increases in GP contractual entitlements agreed in 
the five-year deal, and the increased ARRS entitlements. Data on general practice 
appointments is being published, including at practice-level, and work is ongoing to 
improve the quality and use of the data. 

1D. Elective care 

Key actions: 
• Deliver an appropriate reduction in outpatient follow-up (OPFU) in line with 

the national ambition to reduce OPFU activity by 25% against the 2019/20 
baseline by March 2024 

• Increase productivity and meet the 85% day case and 85% theatre utilisation 
expectations, using GIRFT and moving procedures to the most appropriate 
settings 

• Offer meaningful choice at point of referral and at subsequent points in the 
pathway, and use alternative providers if people have been waiting a long 
time for treatment including through the Digital Mutual Aid System (DMAS) 

The goals for elective recovery are set out in the ‘Delivery plan for tackling the 
COVID-19 backlog of elective care’. These include delivery of around 30% more 
elective activity by 2024/25 than before the pandemic, after accounting for the 
impact of an improved care offer through system transformation, and advice and 

Page 90

https://www.england.nhs.uk/primary-care/pharmacy/pharmacy-integration-fund/community-pharmacist-consultation-service/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/primary-care/pharmacy/pharmacy-integration-fund/community-pharmacist-consultation-service/
https://gettingitrightfirsttime.co.uk/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/delivery-plan-for-tackling-the-covid-19-backlog-of-elective-care/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/delivery-plan-for-tackling-the-covid-19-backlog-of-elective-care/


 

11  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

guidance. Meeting this goal of course still depends on returning to and maintaining 
low levels of COVID-19, enabling the NHS to restore normalised operating 
conditions and reduce high levels of staff absence. We will agree targets with 
systems for 2023/24 through the planning round towards that goal on the basis that 
COVID-19 demand will be similar to that in the last 12 months. The contract default 
will be to pay for most elective activity (including ordinary, day and outpatient 
procedures and first appointments but excluding follow-ups) at unit prices for 
activity delivered.  

ICBs and trusts are asked to update their local system plans, actively including 
independent sector providers, setting out the activity, workforce, financial plans and 
transformation goals that will support delivery of these objectives.  

Elective recovery is an important component for the economy in reducing labour 
market inactivity. The reduction in the backlog should enable people to recover and 
live healthy, productive lives once again. DHSC is currently undertaking analysis to 
estimate the number of people who will be able to return to the workplace and will 
publish this a complement to this guidance by 10 February 2023. 

NHS England will allocate £3bn of ERF to ICBs and regional commissioners on a 
fair shares basis and continue to work with systems and providers to maximise the 
impact of the three-year capital Targeted Investment Fund put in place in 2022. 
Further details will be set out in the Revenue finance and contracting guidance for 
2023/24 and Capital guidance update 2023/24. 

1E. Cancer 

Key actions: 
• Implement and maintain priority pathway changes for lower GI (at least 80% 

of FDS lower GI referrals are accompanied by a FIT result), skin 
(teledermatology) and prostate cancer (best practice timed pathway) 

• Increase and prioritise diagnostic and treatment capacity, including ensuring 
that new diagnostic capacity, particularly via community diagnostic centres 
(CDCs), is prioritised for urgent suspected cancer. Nationally, we expect 
current growth levels to translate into a requirement for a 25% increase in 
diagnostic capacity required for cancer and a 13% increase in treatment 
capacity. 

Page 91



 

12  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

• Expand the Targeted Lung Health Checks (TLHC) programme and ensure 
sufficient diagnostic and treatment service capacity to meet this new 
demand. 

• Commission key services which will underpin progress on early diagnosis, 
including non-specific symptoms pathways (to provide 100% population 
coverage by March 2024), surveillance services for liver; and work with 
regional public health commissioners to increase colonoscopy capacity to 
accommodate both the extension of the NHS bowel cancer screening 
programme to 54 year olds and the inclusion of Lynch patients, and to 
increase capacity within the NHS breast screening programme for patients 
with BRCA. 

The NHS is implementing one of the most comprehensive strategies on early 
diagnosis anywhere in the world. Cancer Alliances and the ICBs they serve will lead 
the local delivery of this NHS-wide strategy. NHS England is providing over £390m 
in cancer service development funding to Cancer Alliances in each of the next two 
years to support delivery of this strategy and the operational priorities for cancer set 
out above. As in previous years, the Cancer Alliance planning pack will provide 
further information to support the development of cancer plans by alliances and 
these, subject to ICB agreement, are expected to form part of wider local system 
plans. 

1F. Diagnostics 

Key actions: 
• Maximise the pace of roll-out of additional diagnostic capacity, delivering the 

second year of the three-year investment plan for establishing Community 
Diagnostic Centres (CDCs) and ensuring timely implementation of new CDC 
locations and upgrades to existing CDCs 

• Deliver a minimum 10% improvement in pathology and imaging networks 
productivity by 2024/25 through digital diagnostic investments and meeting 
optimal rates for test throughput 

• Increase GP direct access in line with the national rollout ambition and 
develop plans for further expansion in 2023/24 (NHS England will publish 
separate guidance to support the increase in GP direct access) 

Timely access to diagnostics is critical to providing responsive, high quality services 
and supporting elective recovery and early cancer diagnosis. NHS England has 

Page 92



 

13  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

provided funding to support the development of pathology and imaging networks 
and the development and rollout of CDCs. £2.3bn of capital funding to 2025 has 
also been allocated to support diagnostic service transformation, including to 
implement CDCs, endoscopy, imaging equipment and digital diagnostics.  

1G. Maternity and neonatal services 

Key actions: 
• Continue to deliver the actions from the final Ockenden report as set out in 

the April 2022 letter as well as those that will be set out in the single delivery 
plan for maternity and neonatal services . 

• Ensure all women have personalised and safe care through every woman 
receiving a personalised care plan and being supported to make informed 
choices 

• Implement the local equity action plans that every local maternity and 
neonatal system (LMNS)/ICB has in place to reduce inequalities in access 
and outcomes for the groups that experience the greatest inequalities (Black, 
Asian and Mixed ethnic groups and those living in the most deprived areas). 

NHS England will publish a single delivery plan for maternity and neonatal services 
in early 2023. This will consolidate the improvement actions committed to in Better 
Births, the NHS Long Term Plan, the Neonatal Critical Care Review, and reports of 
the independent investigation at Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS Trust and 
the independent investigation into maternity and neonatal services in East Kent. 

To support delivery including addressing the actions highlighted in the Ockenden 
report NHS England has invested a further £165m through the maternity 
programme for 2023/24. This is £72m above the £93m baselined in system 
allocations to support the maternity and neonatal workforce. That investment has 
increased the number of established midwifery posts by more than 1;500 compared 
to 2021. 

1H. Use of resources 

To deliver a balanced net system financial position for 2023/24 and achieve our core 
service recovery objectives, we must meet the 2.2% efficiency target agreed with 
government and improve levels of productivity. 

ICBs and providers should work together to: 

Page 93

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/B1523-ockenden-final-report-letter-1-april-22.pdf


 

14  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

• Develop robust plans that deliver specific efficiency savings and raise 
productivity consistent with the goals set out in this guidance to increase activity 
and improve outcomes within allocated resources. 

• Put in place strong oversight and governance arrangements to drive delivery, 
supported by clear financial control and monitoring processes. 

Plans should include systematic approaches to understand where productivity has 
been lost and the actions needed to restore underlying productivity, including, but not 
be limited to, measures to:  

• Support a productive workforce taking advantage of opportunities to deploy 
staff more flexibly. Systems should review workforce growth by staff group and 
identify expected productivity increases in line with the growth seen. 

• Increase theatre productivity using the Model Hospital System theatre 
dashboard and associated GIRFT training and guidance, and other pathway 
and service specific opportunities.  

Plans should also set out measures to release efficiency savings, including actions to:  
• Reduce agency spending across the NHS to 3.7% of the total pay bill in 

2023/24 which is consistent with the system agency expenditure limits for 
2023/24 that are set out separately. NHS England has published toolkits to 
support this. 

• Reduce corporate running costs with a focus on consolidation, 
standardisation, and automation to deliver services at scale across ICS 
footprints. NHS England has published annual cost data benchmarking and a 
corporate service improvement toolkit . 

• Reduce procurement and supply chain costs by realising the opportunities 
for specific products and services. Systems should work to the operating model 
and commercial standards and the consolidated supplier frameworks agreed 
with suppliers through Supply Chain Coordination Limited (SCCL). Systems 
should engage with the Specialised Services Devices Programme to leverage 
the benefits across all device areas. 

• Improve inventory management. NHS Supply Chain will lead the 
implementation of an inventory management and point of care solution. 
National funding will support providers that do not have effective inventory 
management systems.  

• Purchase medicines at the most effective price point by realising the 
opportunities for price efficiency identified by the Commercial Medicines Unit, 
and ensure we get the best value from the NHS medicines bill. National support 

Page 94

https://model.nhs.uk/
https://gettingitrightfirsttime.co.uk/
https://future.nhs.uk/FSTW/view?objectID=36962672
https://future.nhs.uk/CorporateServicesToolkit/view?objectId=30862288


 

15  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

to deliver efficiencies will continue to be available for systems through the 
National Medicines Value Programme.  

 

2. Delivering the key NHS Long Term Plan ambitions 
and transforming the NHS 

2A. Mental health 

Key actions:  
• Continue to achieve the Mental Health Investment Standard by increasing 

expenditure on mental health services by more than allocations growth. 
• Develop a workforce plan that supports delivery of the system’s mental 

health delivery ambition, working closely with ICS partners including provider 
collaboratives and the voluntary, community and social enterprise (VCSE) 
sectors. 

• Improve mental health data to evidence the expansion and transformation of 
mental health services, and the impact on population health, with a focus on 
activity, timeliness of access, equality, quality, and outcomes data. 

As systems update their local plans, they are also asked to set out how the wider 
commitments in the NHS Mental Health Implementation Plan 2019/20–2023/24 will 
be taken forward to improve the quality of local mental healthcare across all ages in 
line with population need. ICSs are asked to continue to work across systems, both 
as Anchor Institutions and in their role to promote population health outcomes to 
take every opportunity to promote economic activity in local communities, including 
supporting people often excluded from the workplace due to mental health 
conditions into meaningful occupation, which we know can be beneficial for mental 
health and wellbeing, where it is in line with an individual's identified goals. 

NHS England has allocated funding to grow the workforce and expand services to 
support delivery of the mental health NHS Long Term Plan commitments. In 
particular, NHS England will continue to support the growth in IAPT workforce by 
providing 60% salary support for new trainees in 2023/24. We will also support 
ICBs to co-produce a plan by 31 March 2024 to localise and realign mental health 
and learning disability inpatient services over a three year period as part of a new 
quality transformation programme. 

Page 95

https://www.england.nhs.uk/medicines-2/value-programme/
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/publication/nhs-mental-health-implementation-plan-2019-20-2023-24/


 

16  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

2B. People with a learning disability and autistic people 

Key actions: 
• Continue to improve the accuracy and increase size of GP Learning 

Disability registers.  
• Develop integrated, workforce plans for the learning disability and autism 

workforce to support delivery of the objectives set out in this guidance. (The 
workforce baselining exercise completed during 2022/23 will assist in the 
development of local, integrated, workforce plans to support delivery.) 

• Test and implement improvement in autism diagnostic assessment pathways 
including actions to reduce waiting times. 

NHS England has allocated funding of £120m to support system delivery against 
the objectives and will publish guidance on models of mental health inpatient care 
to support a continued focus on admission avoidance and improving quality. 

2C. Embedding measures to improve health and reduce inequalities 

Key actions: 
• Update plans for the prevention of ill-health and incorporate them in joint 

forward plans, paying due regard to the NHS Long Term Plan primary and 
secondary prevention priorities, including a continued focus on CVD 
prevention, diabetes and smoking cessation. Plans should: 

o build on the successful innovation and partnership working that 
characterised the COVID vaccination programme and consider how 
best to utilise new technology such as home testing. NHS England will 
publish a tool summarising the highest impact interventions that can 
be – and are already being – implemented by the NHS. 

o have due regard to the government’s Women’s Health Strategy. 
• Continue to deliver against the five strategic priorities for tackling health 

inequalities and: 
o take a quality improvement approach to addressing health inequalities 

and reflect the Core20PLUS5 approach in plans 
o consider the specific needs of children and young people and reflect 

the Core20PLUS5 – An approach to reducing health inequalities for 
children and young people in plans 

o establish High Intensity Use services to support demand management 
in UEC. 

Page 96

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/joint-forward-plan/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/joint-forward-plan/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/womens-health-strategy-for-england
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/core20plus5-cyp/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/core20plus5-cyp/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/high-intensity-use-programme/


 

17  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

Funding is provided through core ICB allocations to support the delivery of system 
plans developed with public health, local authority, VCSE and other partners. The 
formula includes an adjustment to weight resources to areas with higher avoidable 
mortality and the £200m of additional funding allocated for health inequalities in 
2022/23 is also being made recurrent in 2023/24. 

2D. Investing in our workforce 

In 2022/23 systems were asked to develop whole system workforce plans. These 
should be refreshed to support: 

• Improved staff experience and retention through systematic focus on all 
elements of the NHS People Promise and implementation of the Growing 
Occupational Health Strategy, improving attendance toolkit and Stay and Thrive 
Programme. 

• Increased productivity by fully using existing skills, adapting skills mix and 
accelerating the introduction of new roles (e.g. anaesthesia associates, AHP 
support workers, pharmacy technicians and assistants, first contact 
practitioners, and advanced clinical practitioners). 

• Flexible working practices and flexible deployment of staff across organisational 
boundaries using digital solutions (e-rostering, e-job planning, Digital Staff 
Passport). 

• Regional multi professional education and training investment plans (METIP) 
and ensure sufficient clinical placement capacity, including educator/trainer 
capacity, to enable all NHS England- funded trainees and students to maintain 
education and training pipelines.  

• implementation of the Kark recommendations and Fit and Proper Persons 
(FPP) test. 

NHS England is increasing investment in workforce education and training in real 
terms in each of the next two years. 

2E. Digital 

Key actions: 
• Use forthcoming digital maturity assessments to measure progress towards 

the core capabilities set out in What Good Looks Like (WGLL) and identify 
the areas that need to be prioritised in the development of plans. Specific 
expectations will be set out in the refreshed WGLL in early 2023. 

Page 97

https://www.nhsemployers.org/news/growing-occupational-health-and-wellbeing-strategy
https://www.nhsemployers.org/news/growing-occupational-health-and-wellbeing-strategy
https://www.nhsemployers.org/publications/improving-staff-retention
https://www.hee.nhs.uk/sites/default/files/HEE%20-%20METIP%202021-22.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/kark-review-of-the-fit-and-proper-persons-test
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/787955/kark-review-on-the-fit-and-proper-persons-test.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/787955/kark-review-on-the-fit-and-proper-persons-test.pdf
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.england.nhs.uk%2Fdigitaltechnology%2Fconnecteddigitalsystems%2Fmaturity-index%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cliz.krymalowski%40nhs.net%7C43398d9c87474408addf08dadd2c29cc%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638065478983782099%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=F0MlK7m2cnJjNbKCYHPDih%2BiMcEtr93hF3OMg7V11AU%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftransform.england.nhs.uk%2Fdigitise-connect-transform%2Fwhat-good-looks-like%2Fwhat-good-looks-like-publication%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cliz.krymalowski%40nhs.net%7C43398d9c87474408addf08dadd2c29cc%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638065478983782099%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ZlhXaYWfgBcLSHe3VIXNnOH7MEqOk%2F89NflUR1kGrf4%3D&reserved=0


 

18  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

• Put the right data architecture in place for population health management 
(PHM).  

• Put digital tools in place so patients can be supported with high quality 
information that equips them to take greater control over their health and 
care. 

DHSC recently published strategic plans for digital, data and technology. Data 
saves lives and A plan for digital health and social care set out how digitised 
services can support integration and service transformation. NHS England will: 

• Provide funding to help ICSs meet minimum digital foundations, especially 
electronic records in accordance with WGLL. 

• Procure a Federated Data Platform, available to all ICSs, with nationally 
developed functionality including tools to help maximise capacity, reduce 
waiting lists and co-ordinate care. 

• Roll out new functionality for the NHS App, to help people take greater 
control over their health and their interactions with the NHS, including better 
support to get to the right in-person or digital service more quickly, access to 
their patient records, improved functionality for prescriptions and improved 
support for hospital appointments and choice ahead of next winter. 

• Accelerate the ambition of reducing the reporting burden on providers and 
addressing the need for more timely automated data through the Faster Data 
Flows (FDF) Programme. 

Funding is allocated to meet minimum digital foundations (especially electronic 
patient records) and scale up use of digital social care records in accordance with 
WGLL.  

2F. System working 

2023/24 is the first full year for ICSs in their new form with the establishment of 
statutory ICBs and integrated care partnerships (ICPs). Key priorities for their 
development in 2023/24 include: 

• Developing ICP integrated care strategies and ICB joint forward plans. 
• Maturing ways of working across the system including provider 

collaboratives and place-based partnership arrangements. 

Improving NHS patient care, outcomes and experience can only be achieved by 
embedding innovation and research in everyday practice. ICBs have a statutory 

Page 98

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fdata-saves-lives-reshaping-health-and-social-care-with-data%2Fdata-saves-lives-reshaping-health-and-social-care-with-data&data=05%7C01%7Cliz.krymalowski%40nhs.net%7C9cd222357fe54e2241cd08dadc5f184c%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638064598225012179%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=vUUa3mBwI7hbZcp1dLMY7bvEGgg74pSK8cCR36zarLM%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fdata-saves-lives-reshaping-health-and-social-care-with-data%2Fdata-saves-lives-reshaping-health-and-social-care-with-data&data=05%7C01%7Cliz.krymalowski%40nhs.net%7C9cd222357fe54e2241cd08dadc5f184c%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638064598225012179%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=vUUa3mBwI7hbZcp1dLMY7bvEGgg74pSK8cCR36zarLM%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fa-plan-for-digital-health-and-social-care%2Fa-plan-for-digital-health-and-social-care&data=05%7C01%7Cliz.krymalowski%40nhs.net%7C9cd222357fe54e2241cd08dadc5f184c%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638064598225012179%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PnmRxTu63Rc4%2FXUqvURNWNjOCHmuB67kXx5z2iikoqQ%3D&reserved=0
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/secure-data-environment-policy-guidelines/secure-data-environment-for-nhs-health-and-social-care-data-policy-guidelines
https://future.nhs.uk/connect.ti/OIforC/view?objectId=38648080
https://future.nhs.uk/connect.ti/OIforC/view?objectId=38648080


 

19  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

duty to facilitate or otherwise promote research and the use of evidence obtained 
from research and to promote innovation, for example AI and machine learning 
which is driving efficiency and enabling earlier diagnosis.  

NHS England will continue to support ICSs to draw on national best practice and 
peer insight to inform future development. 

Joint forward plans 
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and Care Act 
2022) requires ICBs and their partner trusts (the ICB’s partner NHS trusts and 
foundation trusts are named in its constitution) to prepare five-year JFPs before the 
start of each financial year.  

NHS England has developed guidance to support the development of JFPs with 
input from all 42 ICBs, trusts and national organisations representing local 
authorities and other system partners, including VCSE sector leaders. 

Systems have significant flexibility to determine their JFP’s scope as well as how it 
is developed and structured. Legal responsibility for developing the JFP lies with 
the ICB and its partner trusts. However, we encourage systems to use the JFP to 
develop a shared delivery plan for the integrated care strategy (developed by the 
ICP) and the joint local health and wellbeing strategy (JLHWS) (developed by local 
authorities and their partner ICBs, which may be through health and wellbeing 
boards) that is supported by the whole system, including local authorities and VCSE 
partners. 

Delegated budgets 
We are moving towards ICBs taking on population healthcare budgets, with pharmacy, 
ophthalmology, and dentistry (POD) services fully delegated by April 2023 and 
appropriate specialised services delegated from April 2024. This will enable local 
systems to design and deliver more joined-up care for their patients and communities. 
NHS England will support ICBs as they take on commissioning responsibility across 
POD services from April 2023, supporting the integration of services. 

Subject to NHS England Board approval, statutory joint committees of ICBs and NHS 
England will oversee commissioning of appropriate specialised services across multi-
ICB populations from April 2023, ahead of ICBs taking on this delegated responsibility 
in April 2024.  

Page 99

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/joint-forward-plan/


 

20  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

ICBs are expected to work with NHS England through their joint commissioning 
arrangements to develop delivery plans. These should identify at least three key 
priority pathways for transformation, where integrated commissioning can support the 
triple aim of improving quality of care, reducing inequalities across communities, and 
delivering best value. NHS England will provide ICBs with tools and resources to 
support transformation, and to further develop their understanding of specialised 
services and enable them to realise the benefits of integration. 

  

Page 100



 

21  |  2023/24 priorities and operational planning guidance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NHS England 
Wellington House 
133-155 Waterloo Road 
London 
SE1 8UG 
 
 
This publication can be made available in a number of other formats on request.  
© NHS England 2022  |  PR00021 

Page 101





 

           
Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 
Monday 20 March 2023 

 

District and Borough Health Scrutiny Activity  
 
Recommendation  

 
I recommend that: 
 

a. The report be received, and consideration be given to any matters arising 
from the Health Scrutiny activity being undertaken by the Staffordshire 

District and Borough Councils, as necessary. 
 

Summary 
 

 The Committee receives updates at each meeting to consider any matters 
arising from the Health Scrutiny activity being undertaken by the 

Staffordshire District and Borough Councils. 
 

Background  
 
2. The Health and Social Care Act 2001 confers on local authorities with social 

services functions powers to undertake scrutiny of health matters. The 
County Council currently have responsibility for social services functions 

but, to manage health scrutiny more effectively, they have agreed with the 
eight District/Borough Councils in the County to operate joint working 

arrangements.  
 

3. Each District/Borough Council has a committee in which holds the remit for 
health and wellbeing scrutiny matters and matters that have a specifically 
local theme. The Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee will  

continue to deal with matters that impact on the whole or large parts of the 
County and that require wider debate across Staffordshire. 

 
4. District and Borough Councils each have a representative from the County 

Council Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee as a member of 
the relevant committee with remit for health scrutiny matters. The County 

Councillors will update the District and Borough Councils on matters 
considered by the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee. A 
summary of matters considered by this committee is circulated to District 

and Borough Councils for information.  
 

Page 103

Agenda Item 6



 

5. It is anticipated that the District and Borough Councillors who are members 

of this committee will present the update of matters considered at the 
District and Borough committees to the Health and Care Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee. 
  

6. The following is a summary of the health scrutiny activity which has been 
undertaken at the District/Borough Council level since the last meeting of 

the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28 November 
2022.  

 

7. Cannock Chase District Council 
 

Cannock Chase’s Health, Wellbeing & The Community Scrutiny Committee 
last met on 5 December 2022. The following matters were considered: 

 
Presentation on the Environmental Health & Public Protection 

Service  
 
Food and Safety Team: The Environmental Health and Public Protection 

Manager provided an overview of the service that included the Food and 
Safety Team, snapshot of food safety 2020-2022, case studies that 

included premises visited and outcomes of meat manufacturers visited, 
health and safety/public health and an overview of the priorities, and the 

challenges ahead. 
 

Environmental Protection: Members were provided with information that 
covered environmental protection. This included fly tipping, littering, 
animal welfare etc. Slides were show that covered who was in the Team, 

key achievements and challenges, environmental awareness, future 
actions, stats and figures for environmental crime and also prosecution 

figures. Case studies were also discussed concerning fly tipping and animal 
welfare, and the outcomes of these.  Members discussed the current issues 

with the Poplars Land fill site, Norton Canes. Advertising of prices/services 
and what the site would accept was discussed along with licence limits for 

pollution. The Officer discussed the levels of pollution and advised that 
many businesses fell under the threshold. He advised that the permits 
would provide the threshold of what would be considered the correct level. 

The Head of Environment and Healthy Lifestyles confirmed that the Poplars 
Landfill site was run by the County Council along with other sites. 

 
A Member discussed the revocation of the Air Quality Management 

Areas (AQMAs) and the plan to move forward. He expressed some 
concern that this needed to be more open. The Member also discussed the 

number of developments planned around the Heath Hayes area and the 
impact on local health of traffic around the five-ways island. He questioned 

Page 104



 

whether the (AQMAs) should be removed particularly when stats would not 

be known on the impact for several years. 
 

The Officer reported that monitors would remain in place and a decision 
was made by Defra that levels were below a certain level, and they would 

not remove the AQMAs too early. A consultation would be undertaken; 
however, it was likely that if there were no concerns, the AQMAs would be 

revoked.  
 
Private Sector Housing Standards Team: Members were provided with 

information that covered housing standards, information about the team, 
key achievements and challenges, key action and priorities, case studies 

relating to an unlicensed House of Multiple Occupation (HMO) and 
information around the Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES) 

Project. In response to Members questions concerning landlords’ duty of 
care to declare the type of residency to the Council, and properties not 

deemed suitable for a resident. The Officer advised that in terms of 
landlords and their duty of care, the Council would deal with the licensing 
of more than 5 people in a property, however there was no requirement for 

assisted living providers to inform the Council. The Officer also advised that 
those people residing in unsuitable properties would continue to be 

engaged and re-assured, and it was hoped that access could be gained to 
the property for Officers to make an assessment.  

 
Adaptations and Assistance Service (“The DFG Team”): Members 

were provided with information about the team, the adaptation of homes 
and reasons for adaptations, key challenges, key actions, key 
achievements, case studies and visual images of an accessible bathroom 

and wheelchair accessible ramp. Members asked questions about security 
for visually impaired people and referrals to the service be it by family 

members or self-referral. The Officer provided information and advised that 
safety was a consideration. He gave an example of a person living alone 

who had a door entry system installed which allowed family members 
access to his home, given that family members were unsure about who 

was entering his property given certain illness/conditions he was suffering 
from. The Officer also explained the assessment route regarding referrals, 
and it was highly unlikely with a low take up of referrals being made by 

other people as the assessment would identify any need first.   
 

Environmental Health Admin and Licensing Unit: Members were 
provided with slides that gave information on the team, the work of the 

team, partnership working, compliance and enforcement, achievements 
and challenges, the impact of the service on public safety and examples of 

helping to ensure public safety. 
 

Page 105



 

Statutory Health Scrutiny Items: Update – Staffordshire County 

Council’s Health & Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The Chair 
reported on the recent meeting she had attended last week that covered 

numerous items including the public health dashboard and primary care 
access updates. She reported that comments were made on how well the 

Committee at Cannock worked, and other Districts and Boroughs were 
encouraged to do the same. The Chair reported that recent meetings of the 

County’s Health and Care and Overview Scrutiny Committee could be 
accessed through their website. 
 

Date of next meeting: 14 March 2023 
 

8.East Staffordshire Borough Council 
 

East Staffordshire Borough Council’s Scrutiny Community Environment , 
Health and Well Being Committee met on 25 January 2023. 

 
ESBC are concluding a review into the benefits of joining the White Ribbon 
Campaign and how the organisation can be better positioned to not only 

address Violence Against Women and Girls but also how to promote 
positive relationships and interactions between councillors, officers and the 

general public. 
 

Date next meeting:  16 March 2023 
 

9.Lichfield District Council 
 
Lichfield District Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee met on 8 

February 2023. 
 

Date of next meeting: 16 March 2023 
 

10.Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council 
 

The Health, Wellbeing & Environment Scrutiny Committee last met on 28 
November 2022. 
 

 The Committee considered a presentation on using grazing animals 
at St James’ Church in Audley to keep it tidy. 

 
 Tennis provision in the Borough was discussed including resurfacing 

and repainting works at the Westlands Courts. 
 

 The Latest update regarding Walleys Quarry was considered and the 
Council was working closely with the site operators. 

 

Page 106



 

 Consideration was given to the Health and Care Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee digests and notes from a meeting with the 
Integrated Care Board and the reports from the Staffordshire Police, 

Fire and Crime Panel held in October. 
 

   Date of next meeting: 6 March 2023 (minutes under construction) 
 

11. South Staffordshire District Council 
 
South Staffordshire Councils Wellbeing Select Committee last met on 7th 

February 2023. The following matters were considered.  
 

Leisure Services Refurbishment Update 
 

A presentation was provided by the Community Services Manager on the 
Councils Leisure Centre refurbishment programme. A refurbishment 

programme is currently being delivered across the councils four Leisure 
centre sites. Members were updated on progress including before and after 
photos and the next steps in the refurbishment programme. 

 
Community Physical Activity Outreach Wellbeing Activities 

 
The Councils Leisure & Health Manager provided an overview of the 

community health and wellbeing programmes that are delivered over and 
above the Councils core Leisure Offer ,  this includes walking and gentle 

exercise classes delivered at various locations across the District , to 
improve access to physical activity opportunities. Updates were also given 
on partnership working including social prescribing , exercise on referral, 

spinal functional rehabilitation and other health-based initiatives which are 
delivered from community clinics based in the council’s leisure facilities. 

 
Healthwatch Staffordshire, Accessing Primary Care  

 
Healthwatch Staffordshire carried out a presentation on primary care 

access across Staffordshire with a specific emphasis on GP practices based 
in South Staffordshire, this focussed on increased demand, reduced GP 
workforce due to recruitment and retention issues , referral backlogs , 

variability in deprived and diverse communities and patients generally 
wanting to see a GP face to face despite other options being available. 

 
WORK PROGRAMME 2023-24 

 
The Assistant Director Community Services gave an overview of the 

committees work programme for 2023 and requested Members come 
forward with any additional local Health and Wellbeing issues that can be 

referred to the committee.  

Page 107



 

 

Date of next meeting Tuesday 6th June 2023 
 

12. Stafford Borough Council 
 

The last meeting of Stafford Borough Council’s Community Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee was due to be held on Tuesday 10 January 2023, 

where the following items were considered:- 

 Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee - a report back on a 
previous meeting of the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee held on 3 and 17 October 2022. 

 Air Quality Annual Status Report 2022 – a report the work that has 

been undertaken by the Council to monitor the air quality of the 
Borough to ensure that there was a good and healthy air qual ity 

environment 

 Food Safety Annual Report 2021-2022 

 Food Safety Service Plan 2022-2025 

 Health and Safety Annual Report 2021-2022 

The next meeting of the Scrutiny Committee is due to be held on Thursday 

23 March 2023. 
 

13. Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council’s Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel met on 8 March 2023.  

 
Members considered a presentation given by Vicky Rowley, Commissioning 
Manager, Public Health and Prevention, SCC on the Loneliness Reduction 

Plan. 
 

Date of next meeting: To be agreed at Annual Council on 17 May 2023.  
 

14. Tamworth Borough Council 
 

Tamworth Borough Council’s Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee met 

on 29 November 2022, 24 January 2023 & 22 February 2023 and 

considered: 

 Homelessness Strategic Update 2022/ Update on Homelessness data 

successes and homelessness hub 

Page 108



 

 Delivery of Disabled Adaptations in Tamworth 

 Housing Strategy Update 

 Loneliness and Addiction Support Services 

Date of next meeting: 28 March 2023 

 

Link to Strategic Plan  
 

Scrutiny work programmes are aligned to the ambitions and delivery of the 
principles, priorities, and outcomes of the Staffordshire Corporate Plan. 
 

Link to Other Overview and Scrutiny Activity 
 

The update reports provide overview of scrutiny activity across Borough and 
Districts, shares good practice, and highlights emerging concerns which 

inform work programmes for Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees across Staffordshire. 

 
List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 

Council District/ Borough 
Representative on CC 

County Council 
Representative on 
DC/BC 

Cannock Chase  Cllr Philippa Haden Cllr Phil Hewitt 

East Staffordshire Cllr Mrs Patricia Ackroyd Cllr Philip Atkins 

Lichfield  Cllr Michael Wilcox Cllr Janice Sylvester-Hall 

Newcastle Cllr Ian Wilkes Cllr Ian Wilkes 

South Staffordshire  Cllr Lin Hingley Cllr Jak Abrahams 

Stafford BC Cllr Jill Hood Cllr Anne Edgeller 

Staffordshire 

Moorlands 

Cllr Barbara Hughes Cllr Keith Flunder 

Tamworth  Cllr Daniel Maycock Cllr Thomas Jay 

 

Contact Details 
Report Author:   Zach Simister 

Job Title:    Interim Scrutiny and Support Officer 
Telephone No.:   01785 276901 
E-Mail Address:  zachary.simister@staffordshire.gov.uk 

Page 109

mailto:Deborah.breedon@staffordshire.gov.uk




 

 
Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 20 March 2023 

Work Programme 2022/23   

This document sets out the work programme for the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 2022/23.   

The Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for: 

  Scrutiny of matters relating to the planning, provision and operation of health services in the Authority's area, 
including public health, in accordance with regulations made under the Health and Social Care Act 2001 and 

subsequent guidance. 
  Scrutiny of the Council’s work to achieve its priorities that Staffordshire is a place where people live longer, 

healthier and fulfilling lives and In Staffordshire’s communities people are able to live independent and safe 
lives, supported where this is required (adults). 

 

Link to Council’s Strategic Plan Outcomes and Priorities  

 Inspire healthy, independent living 
 Support more families and children to look after themselves, stay safe and well  

 

We review our work programme at every meeting. Our focus in scrutiny is on tangible outcomes for the residents of 

Staffordshire, to use the data provided and members experience to debate and question the evidence, to provide 

assurance in what is being done and reassurance that matters within the health and care system are moving in the right 

direction. Scrutiny of an issue may result in recommendations for NHS organisations in the county, the County Council 

and for other organisations.  

 

Councillor Jeremy Pert  

Chairman of the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

If you would like to know more about our work programme, please contact  Deborah.breedon@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:Deborah.breedon@staffordshire.gov.uk


 

 

 
Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2022-23 

  
Date Topic Background/Outcomes 

 
Committee Meetings, Reviews and Consultations                                                                                 
 

  Background Basis Outcomes from Meeting 

Monday 30 May 2022 

at 10.00 am 
Scheduled 

 Elective Recovery  

 Changes to the Healthy Communities  
Service from April 2023. 

 Work programme 2022-23 

 

 

Risk & 

Performance 
Public Health 
 

Planning  

Considered plans to address backlog & requested further information 

Noted the increased focus on priority services & outcomes, change to 
eligibility criteria, impact in communities and early prevention. 
Planning and prioritisation of work programme items 

Tuesday 21 June 
2pm   

Healthier Communities day  Public Health Workshop feedback and findings will form the evidence base for a 
report to committee. 

Monday 11 July 2022 
at 10.00 am  

Scheduled 

 ICS and ICB Update  

 Primary Care Access update 
 

 Maternity Transformation 

 Health Watch Intro to HW year 1 
priorities, focal investigations topics 

 The Families Health & Wellbeing (0-
19) service. (Pre-decision) 

ICS 
ICS 

 
ICS 
Healthwatch 

Pre-decision 

Risk & 
Performance 

Risk & Public 
Concern 
Transformation 

Partnership 
 
Public Health 

Noted the update and included scrutiny of Dentistry and Working with 
People Strategy on the work programme. 

Noted update on Primary Care Plan and requested further update. 
Welcomed the plan for maternity services and requested data on 
numbers of midwives in Staffordshire. 

Noted the report and requested performance metrics and structure 
update. 
Comments on the Families and Wellbeing (0-19) report to Cabinet.     

Monday 1 August 
2022 at 10.00 am 
Scheduled 

 ICS Transformation – George 

Bryan – Inpatient Mental Health 

Services  
 

ICS 
 

Transformation 
 
 

Additional information was requested to strengthen the business case. 
Information arising from scrutiny and comments of the  Committee 
informed discussion of Inpatient Mental Health Services at Integrated 

Care Board on 18 August 2022. 

Monday 19 
September 2022 at 
10.00 am  

Cancelled – Queens Funeral (B/H)    

Thursday 22 
September 2022 at 
1:30pm.   

  

 RWT Acute Trust QA performance 
update 
 

Joint with 
Wolverhampton  
Hybrid link 

available   

Performance HCOSC and CWC carried out  joint scrutiny of RWT Quality Account  

Monday 3  October 
2022 at 10.00 am 

 System Pressure update  
 

 ICB Performance    

 Social Care Performance  

 The future of Supported Living 
Services in Staffordshire 

 

 

 

 

Social Care 

 

Risk and 
performance 

 Performanc
e 

 Performanc
e  

Committee welcomed the work being done to mitigate and respond to 
pressures in the system. Discharge review to be carried out. 
Welcomed context and detailed data relating to NHS services 

performance in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
Noted the performance update, pressures and challenges on social 
care. 

Comments from pre-decision scrutiny were to reported to Cabinet. 

P
age 112



 Clinical Policy Alignment   Pre-decision 
 

 Transformati

on 
 

The Chairman welcomed the pragmatic approach taken by ICB in 
interweaving this clinical policy alignment work into the Women’s 

Health Strategy. 

Monday 17 October 
2022 at 10.00 am 

Scheduled 

 Workforce Planning  
o Health and Care 

o Acute Trusts 
 

 Ockenden Report 

 Inpatient Mental Health Services  

 Workforce 
 

 
 
Risk 

&performance 
Transformation  

Noted reports and assurance that health and care services were 
working together to address the workforce challenges and to develop 

the future workforce.  
Noted the workforce issues in Maternity services, was re-assured by 
the progress and pleased that improvements were being made. 

Noted response to questions and requested a further report once the 
NHS England Assurance Process had taken place in November 2022. 
No decision had been made at this point. 

Monday 28 

November 2022 at 
10.00 am 
Scheduled  

 Public Health Dashboard 

 Developing Healthier Communities  

 Primary Care Access Plan Update 
 

 Performance 

Wider 
determinants 
Performance 

 

Noted update, members will receive training and have opportunity to 

comment on phase 2 of the dash boards development. 
District and Borough Scrutiny Committees should receive the report to 
consider imbedding 'Health in all we do’. 

Noted the update and the ongoing work to deliver the action plan. 

Monday 30 January 
2023 at 10.00 am 
Scheduled 

 ICP Strategy  

 In-patient MH GBC 

 ICH Implementation – update from 
ICH WG and report  

 Performance 
 
Risk and public 

concern 

ICB 
MPFT 
Clare Trenchard   

Monday 13 February 

2023 at 10.00 am 
 Draft Mental Health Strategy  

 Mental Health Support Teams in 

Schools Update  

 CAMHS 

 Policy 

 
 
Performance  

Jan Cartman -Frost  

MPFT 
 
ICS -Chris Bird/ Ben Richards 

Monday 20 March 
2023 at 10.00 am 
Scheduled 

 ICB Operating Plan  

 Care workforce development 
strategy  

 Risk and 
Performance 

 

 
Work programme for 2023-24  - items Background Basis Target Scheduling Date 

  Impact of air pollution on health Work 

planning  

Risk  

 Impact of Long COVID Risk 

 Obesity and Diabetes  29/11/21 Public Health 

 Social prescribing 29/11/21 Public Health 

 NHS estate – fit for twenty first 
century 

13/12/21 Planning, Policy & 
Processes 

  End of Life – compassionate 
communities  

 Patient journey 

  UHMN Critical incident lessons learnt     

  Innovation / technology  30.05.2022  Staffordshire University/ ICS – demonstration of technology TBA  

  Health Visitor Service  30.05.2022   

  NHS Visual Impairment Service 30.05.2022   

  Adult Social Care Reform    

P
age 113



  Dentistry    (20 March) transfer to ICS commissioning  April 2023. possibly 12 
June 2023 

  Trusts QA ( From January )   12 June 2023 

 
Item Focus Suggested Items 

The Role of Community Hospitals within the Wider 

Health Economy (CCGs, MPFT, D&BUHFT) 

Transformation   

 

Going Digital in Health  Transformation Requested at meeting on 16 March 2021 Part of transformation programme   

 
Membership 

Jeremy Pert    Chairman) 
Richard Cox  (Vice-Chairman - Overview) 
Ann Edgeller             (Vice-Chairman – Scrutiny) 
Charlotte Atkins 
Philip Atkins 
Keith Flunder 
Thomas Jay 
Phil Hewitt 
Jill Hood 
Bernard Peters 
Janice Silvester-Hall 
Mike Sutherland 
Ian Wilkes  
 
Borough/District Councillors 

 
Jill Hood             (Stafford)  
Philippa Haden  (Cannock Chase) 
Patricia Ackroyd    (East Staffordshire)  
Michael Wilcox (Lichfield) 
Ian Wilkes   (Newcastle-under-Lyme) 
Barbara Hughes   (Staffordshire Moorlands) 
Lin Hingley                  (South Staffordshire) 
Daniel Maycock (Tamworth) 

Calendar of Committee Meetings 

at County Buildings, Martin Street, Stafford. ST16 2LH  
(at 10.00 am unless otherwise stated) 
 
Monday 30 May 2022 at 10.00 am; 
Tuesday 21 June 2022 at 14.00 am – Wider Determinants Workshop 
Monday 11 July 2022 at 10.00 am; 
Monday 1 August 2022 at 10.00 am; 
Monday 19 September 2022 at 10.00 am; 
Thursday 22 September 2022 at  3:30 Joint RWT with Wolverhampton Ccl 
Monday 17 October 2022 at 10.00 am; 
Monday 28 November 2022 at 10.00 am; 
Monday 30 January 2023 at 10.00 am; 
Monday 13 February 2023 at 10.00 am 
Tuesday 20 March 2023 at 10.00 am; 
 
Work Group Meetings 
Womens Health WG  

Monday 13 June 2022 at 2.30pm 
Innovations Day TBC 
Integrated Care Hubs  

Site visits 4 and 7 November  
16 November 2022 at 6pm 
11 January 2023 at 6pm 

 

22 May – Work planning session  
Health and Care training  

Referral power – Secretary of State.   
Update on Adult Social Care Reform 

 
2023-24 (to be confirmed) - 12 June; 24 July; 18 September; 16 October; 27 November: 29 January; 18 March   

P
age 114


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting held on 13 February 2023
	4 Social Care Workforce Update
	Appendix 1 - Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy
	Appendix 2 - Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Strategy Summary
	Appendix 3 - Staffordshire Social Care Workforce Engagement Summary
	Appendix 4 - Community Impact Assessment

	5 Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent ICB update on 2023/24 Operational Plan
	Appendix 1 - Operational Plan 2023_24 v0.3 FINAL
	Appendix 2 - 2023_24 priorities and operational planning guidance

	6 District and Borough Health Scrutiny Activity
	7 Work Programme 2022/23

